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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 145 635 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your dirgetors present thair eeporl, together with the financial statemenls of the Group, belng the Company and its conlrolled entities for tha financial year ended 39
July 2011,

Principal Activities and Significant Changes in Nature of Activities

Tha principal activilies of the consolideled Growp during Ihe nancial year were:
* selling and distnbuticn of branded cosmetics, toiletizs, skincare and nail care producis.

Thara were no slanificant changes [ tha nalusa of the consclidated Group's princlpal aclivities during the financial year, except as disclosed below:
Cperating Resuits and Raview of Opseratlone for the year

Herilage Brands Limiled Group {the Group} recorded a loss of S408.381 [afler charging relocation expenses of SEB2,451) for the full yvear ended 31 July
2011, This resuil is an improvement over the pravious correspending year (31 July 2010: lass of $2,719,382),

The improvement in (he results is mainly afiributed o an increase in sales and synergies associated with lhe acquisiion of Herifage Brands {Susiralia) Pty
Ltd {formerly Creative Brands Ply Lid) (HBA}, (accounted In Heritage Brands' books from 6 August 20110}, as well s the [ull benefils of the scquisition of
the Innoxa business on 1 Novembar 2009, flowing through o the currant raporting period.

The purchase of 100% interest in Heritage Brands (Ausiralia) Py Ltd {formedy Creative Brands Ply Lidj was funded by the issue of 217,762,810 ordinary
shares.
Financial Position
The net aseets of the consolidated Graup hava incraased by $3,946,877 from 31 July 2010 fo $4,632 688 1n 2041, This Increaseis largely due 1o
« Increase in the issued shara capital on the scquisificn of HBA,

The directors halieve the Group is in a steble financial position end has the platform to expand and grow (13 currant angratans,

Significant Changes In State of Affalrs
The fallowing significant changes in the slate of 2ffairs of the graup aceurred duding the financial year.
1. At an Extraordinary meeting of shareholders hetd on 06 August 2010 the shareholdears of the company:

- Approved the purchase of 100% nferesl in Herlage Brands {Ausiralia) Piy Lid (formerly: Creafive Brande Pty Ud) (HBA), in consideration for he
igsue of 217,782,810 crdinary shares of the company and the eppointment of following former associates of 1IBA as direciors of the Company:

a) GOODEY Stephan Donald Alfred {Managing Direclor)
h) MAS3N Stephen Leslie {Non-Exec Directar)

)] MeCARTNEY Williany Thamson (Non-Exec Director)
d) COX Peter Henry Townsend {(Non-Exao Director

- Approved change of company name from Soda Brands Limited to Headtage Brands Limited to belter reflest ke Lrand ectivities of tha Group.
2. The share 3ala agreement bebyveen Hentage Brands Limited and HBA wa3 executed cn 10 August 2010,

5. The execuliva service agreemsent with Stsphen Donald Alfred Goodsy as per terms of sale agreement was executed on 10 August 2610,

4. Mew shares issued 1o HBA wara listed on NSX on 10 August 2010,

5. Name of the company was changed fo Herilags Brands Limiled on 12 August 2046,

5. A dead of equalisation for new laans fo be provided by incoming direchors was exaecuted on 20 Auguest 20140,

7. & loan agreement for new Factites frem sharelldars amounfing Lo $2.8 milliens was execuled on 20 August 2040

B. New [cans amcunting ip $3,288,746 {nel of principal repayments) were receivedt from shareholders to the group.

2. Operalions were emalgamaled and relocaled o HBA premises in Melboume in Augusl 2010,

Changes in conteclled entilies and divisions:

{it Purchase of 100% of Herllage Brands (Australia} Py Lid, as disciosed above.
{11} The following non-operaling entiics 12ft the Group on da-registration:

g} 80 Distribubions Pty Ltd
bt Salen {Only} Pty Ltd
o] Kistani Ply Lid
Dividends Paid or Recomimended
Mo dividends were paig or daciared lor payment duing tha financial yzar.
Events after the Reporling Period
Mo matters or circumstances have ansen since the end of Ihe financial peded which significantly alfected, or may slgnificantly affect the operations of lhe
conselidated group in future fimancial years, he results of those operations, or the slale of alfeirs of the consclitalad Group in fulare financial years.

Future Developments, Prospects and Business Strategles

Ta further improve the coaselidaled group’s profil and maximise shareholdar weakth, the following developments gre intended to be [mplamented in tae near future:

The Group's stralegy 15 1o grow the business organically and by acquisition, as and when opportunities arise. Inlegral lo this strategy was the divestiment of the
Prafessional Ha'r Division to focus on refail partnsrs and pursus ongoing opporlunilies within the current brands owned and licensed by the Group. The currant
brands owmnad or Frensad Includa Auslralis, Mode, Innoxa, Nallena, Fing'rs, Ravlon nails, and Imedeaan.

Environmantal I5sues
The consolidated Group's operalions are not subjact to significant environmental regulations under the law of Ihe Ganmimonweallh and Stats.



HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 81 081 149 636 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Infoermation an Directors

FAIRFULL Dvavid Johin {Mon-Exec Chatiman}
Qualificalinng —
Cxperience -

Interest int Shares and Cplions —

KROK Maxim {Non-Exas Directon
Interest in Shares and Oplions —

Special Responsibilities —

BEINART Steven {(Non-Exec Director)
Interestin Shares and Options —

Special Responsibilifies —

GOODEY Stephan Donald Alfred (Managing Direclor)

Qualificalions —
Expertence —
fnterest in Shares and Options —
Special Respons bilites -

MASOM Stephen Leslie {Non-Lxec Director)
Qualifications —
interesl In Shares and Cplions —
Direclorships held in other listed entilies during —
lhe kres years prior 1o the cueend year

Special Resgonsibililies —

MeCARTNEY William Thomson (Non-Exec Director)
Interestin Shares and Qpticns —

Special Responsibilities —
COA Peter Henry Townsend {Non-Exes Director)

Qualifications —
Inlareatinn Shares and Opfions -

Special Responsibilities _

SMITH Brent Ghares Albert {Non-Exec Director)

Qualificaticns —
Special Responsibilities —

Company Secretary

DIRECTORS' REPORT

No change during lhe year
B.Com (UNSW}L ACIS CRA Ffin, MAILCD,
Mr. David John Fairfu!l is merchant bankar with over 40 years experience in mergors and acqulsiions
and underaTiting projects. During ke pasl three years, Mr. Fairfoll has served 25 2 Director of the
follerding listed companios:
Souls Private Equity Limited
Drill Torque Limited
Wew Hape Corporalion Limiled*

viashingion H. Soul Patlingen and Company Limited®

* dencles cumrent directorshio

Mr. Fairfull represents Soul Private Equity Limited {SPEL}, a major sharsholder of the group. SPEL
holds 114,862,106 Fully Pald Qrdinary Shares - 25.12% of issued capitel.

£20,000 Fuly Paig Ordinary Sharas

Mo change during the year
The director is & nominee direclor appoinled by Maximize Equity Py Ltd (holding 91,431,844 Fully Paid
Crdinary Shares - 19.98% of issued capitel), the uilimate holding company of Kistan! Holdings Pty Lt
{Kistan1). Kistani holds 14,360,060 Fully Paid Crdinary Shares - 2,.48% of issued capitaf

Chairman of remuneration cammifies and member of audit commitles

No change during the year
The director is a nomines diractor appainted by Maximize Equity Ply Lid (holding 01,431,644 Fuily Paid
Qrdinary Shares - 19.98% ol issued capilal), an ullimete holding company of Kistani Holdings Py Lid
{Kistani). Kislani hofds 11,389,080 Fully Paid Ordinary Shares - 2.45% of issued capltal
Member of remunesation cammittee

Appointed on 06 August 2010
B.Com, MBA, MM
Extensive expeniance In FMCG companfas intemationally.
18,299,034 Fuily Faid Crdinary Shares
Member of remuneration committes

Appointed on 06 Augus! 2010
LLB, B.Com, FGPA, FCIS

63,885,080 Fully Pald Ordinary Sharas - 13.96% of issued capilal
Lemarane Corparation Limited

Member of audil commiltes

Anpalnted on 08 August 2010

The direclor is a aomine director appointed by Rewlo Inlernational Inc {holding 80,671,614 Fully Paid

Crdinary Shares - 17.63% of issued capital).
Member of remuneration commitiea

Appointed on 05 August 2040
B.Com (Melh), ACA
18,282,834 Fully Pald Qrdinary Shares
Chairman of audit conmittee

Appointed on 06 August 2010
Mr. Smilh represents Soul Private Equity Limited (SPEL), the lasgest shareholder of the graug. SPEL
holds 114,582,106 Fully Paid Ordinary Shares - 25.12% of issuad capital.
B.Bus, F.Fin
Fembar of audit commities

The following person held Lhe position of company secrefary at the ard of the financlal year;
MGGIERON, Chrsiopher William was appointed company secrslary on 09 Febiuary 2009,



HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 148 636 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
DIRECTORS" REPORT

Meetings of Diractora

Durlng tha Ginencial year, 15 meelings of direclors {including commiltees of dirgctors) were hald.
Atlendances by each director dunng the year were as ollows.

Remuneration Audit Direclo ' Meatings
Commitice Commitice

Huircer | Humber { Number | Humber | Humbar | Nuabes

ehydle | attendest § chgitio | aMonded | efghble | lendsd |

10 atend fo attend . ko atterd
FAIRFULL David John (Non-Exee Chairmany - - - 12 11
KROK kaxim {Non-Exec Director) 1 1 2 10 42 B
BEINART Stever (Non-Exec Dirsstor) 1 1 - 12 12
GOQDEY Stephen Donald Alfred (Mavaging Director) 1 1 - - 12 12
tMASOHN Staphen Leslia {Mon-Exec Director) - - ] 2 12 b4
MeCARTNEY William Thomsan (Mon-Exee Direclor) 1 1 . - 12 ]
GOR Peler Henry Townzend (Non-Exes Director) - - 2 2 12 12
SMITH Brent Charlas Albart {Non-Exec Direclor} Y 2 2 12 |12

Indemnifying Officers or Auditor

During or since {ha end of the financial year, the compeny hias given an indemnity or entared into an agreemerd 1o indemnify, or paid or agreed (o pay insurance
premiums as follows.

- The cempany has paid pramiums to insure each tha direclors against tabilitiss for costs and expenses incumed by thems in defending Tegal
proceedings arising cut of their conduct white acting in he capacily of director of the company, olhar than conduct Invalving a wilful breach of duty in
relation to the company. The premiums paid arcounted 10 $14,691 [2010; $27,475).

— o indemnilies have been issued or insurance premivm paid in respect of auditors of the Campany.
Options
At tha dale of this report, the unissued ordingry shares of Herdtage Brands Limited undar option ara as follows
Grant Dale Date of expiry Exerclse price Number under option Issued to
FAIRFULE Andrew (Ex Director) in bust
11212006 H/07i2012 25¢ 250,000 for Souls Private Equity Lit.
250,000

Cptions holdars do not have any rights 1o padicipale In any Issues of shares or other interasts in the company or any other entity.
Thera have baen no unizzuad sharas or interesls under option of any conlrolled entity wilhin the Graup during or since the end of tha reporting period.
No aplions were grented as remuneration 1 key managemsant personnel and ofher executives during the year.

During the year ended 31 July 2011, ne ardinary shares of Heritage Brands Limiled were issued on the exercise of oplions granted. Mo forther shares have keen
issued since yvear end, on the exerclse of optlons granted

Proceedinus on Behalf of Company

No person has applied for leave of Court {o bring proceedings on behalf of the campany or inlervene in any proceedings fo which the company is a party for the
purpose of taking responsibility on bebalf of the company for all or any part of those proceedings.

The company was nat a party to any such praceeadings during the yaar.
Non-audit Services

The Board of Directors, 1s salisfied that the provision of non-audit services during {he year is compatib!e wilh the general standard of independance for auditors
imposed by the Comporationa Act 2001. The directors are satizfiad thal the sarvices disclosed below did not compromise the external auditor's independance o the
follawirg reasons:

» all non-audit eervices are reviewed and approved by the audit committee priar ta commencement ta ensure they do not advarsely aifect the integrily and
chjechvity of The auditer; and

« the nalure of the services pravided doas not compramise the gensral principlas refating to auditor independenca In sccordanse wilh APES 190: Code of Ethics
for Profeasional Accounlanis set by the Acccunling Protessional and Ethical Standards Board,

The following fees were pald or payat's to Rothsay Accolnting Services Ply Ltd for non-augil services provided during the year snded 31 July 2011:
§

Taxatlon aervicas 11,660
11,660

Auditor's Independence Declaration
The lead auditor's independence declaralion for the year ended 31 July 2011 has been recaived and can be found on page 6 of the Annual Repa:l.



HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 149 635 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
DIRECTORS' REFORT

REMUNERATION REPORT

Remuneration policy

The remynzralion poficy of Herifage Brands Limited is dasigned io align key management perechne! obfaclives wilh shareholder and business objectives by
providing a fixed remuneration compenent and offening specific long-tem incentives besed oa key performance sreas affecting tha consolidated group's finanalal
resulls. The Board of Heritage Brands Limited believes the remuneration policy o be appropriate and effective in its atifily lo allract and refain the bast kay
manzgement personnel b nun and manages the consolidated group, 25 well a5 ereals goal congruence babween direchors, executives and shareholdars,

The Boerd's policy for datermining the nature and amount of remuneration for key managemenl persenne! of the consolidated groug is as fallows:

+ The remuneration policy is required to be developed by Lhe remuneration commitiee and approved by the Board.

. All kay managamant perconngl recelve a base salary {which Is hasad on factors such as [sngth of service and experznce), superannuation, fings
benefils, and perfonnance incentives.

. Ferformanca incanlivas ara generally only naid once predstermined key performance indicators have beern met.

. Incentives pald in (he form of options of Aghts are intended to align the interests of the directors and company with those of the shareholdars. In {kls

regard, kéy managemsnl parsonnal ara prohiited from limiting risk atlached to those instruments by use of derivalives or glher means,

. The remuneration committes reviews key managemant personnel packages annualty by reference o the consolidated group's parformance, execulive
pesformancs and comparable information from Induslry sectors.

The paformance of key management personngl is measured against oitera agreed aanuelly with each executive and is besed predominanily on lna farecast
growth of the consofidated group's profits and shareholders’ valus. All bonuses and iacentives must be linked to predelermined perlormance oriteriz. The Board
may, howavar, axarcisa s discration in retation to appraving Incantives, bonugss and oplions, and can recommend changas to the commitiee’s recommendations,
Any changes must be juslified by reference lo measurable periormznce criteria. The policy is designed {0 atfract the highest calibre of executives and reward them
for perfonmence resulls leading o long-tenm growth in shareholdar wealth,

Key managemeant personnel recelve 2 suparannuation guarantea contribution required by the government. which is curtently 9%, and do not receive any olhar
reflrement banefits. Seme individuals, however, have chosen lo sacrifice part of their salary la increase payments towards suparannuation.

Al remuneralion peid io key manegement persannel is valued af the ¢ost to the company and expenset.

The Board's policy ia o remunerate non-executive dicectors at market rates for time, commilmenl and respansibilities. The remunaration commitiee determines
payments o the ron-executive directors and reviews their remuneralion annually, basaed on market practice, duties and accountabilily. Independent exlarnal advice
is soughl when required. The maximum aggregate amaunt of fees thal can ba pald to non-executive diccchors is subject to approvat by shareholders af lha Annual
Ganeral Meeling.

Performance-bagad Remuneration

Tha key parformance [ndicalors (KPls} are set annually, with a certain laval of consultatian with kay management personnel. The measunzs are spacifically tsilored
to the area each indivicual is involvad in and has a level of cantrol over. The KPIs terget areas the Soard belisvas hold grealar potential for group éxpansion and
profit. vovering financial and non-financial as welt as short and long-lerm goals. The level sel for each KP!is besed on budgetsd figures for ihe Graup and
respective indusiny slandands,

Performance in relation to lne KPIs is assessed annually, with bonuses being awarded depanding an the number and deemead difficulty of the KPIs achizved.
Following the assessment, the KPIs ane reviewed by the remuneration commilice o light of the desired and actual outcames, and their efficiency is assessed in
refalion to the Group's goals and shareholdar wealth, befare ha KP1's are set for the following year.

In determining whether or nol 3 KP1 has been achieved, Herilage Brands {imited bases the assessment on audited figures, bowover, where the KP invelves
comparison of tha Group or a division within Lhe Group fo the market, independent reports are oblainzd from Independant arganisations.
Relatinnship between Remuneration Policy and Company Performance

Tha remunaralion policy iz lalored to increase goat congruence between ghareholdars, directors and execulives. Twir methods will b applied to achizve this aim,
the tirst being a perormance-based bonus based on key performance indicators, and the second being the issue of oplions la The majority of direclors and
execulivies (o engourage the alignmenl of personal 2nd shareholder interests,

Empfayment Details of Members of Key Mantagement Personnel and Other Executives

The tallowing lable provides emaloyment details of persona who ware, during the financlal year, members of kay managament pargonne! of the consctidaled group,
and to the extent different, among the five Graup execulives or company executives recelving the highest remuneration. The {able alsa illustrates the propartion of
remuncration thal was performancs and non-performance based and the proportion of remuncration received in the: foem of oplions.

Posltlon Held as at 31 July 2044 and
any change during the year

Group Key Managament Personng!

GOODEY Stephen Danald Alfred (Manapging Diractor) Appointed on U8 Augusl 2010
MeGIBBON Christapher William {General Manager - No change during 1he year
shared sarvices)

Propodions of elements of remuneratlon
nit raTated to parfarmanco

Flxed
Salary/Fecs Total
% %
Group Key Management Persannel
GOGCLDEY Siephen Donald Alfred (Managing Directer) 100 100
MeGIRBON Christophar Willlam {(General Manager - shared 100 1030

senvices)
Tha smpicyment larms and conditicas of key meregerment personnal and group executives are formallsed in contracts of employmant.

Changes in Directors and Executives Subsequent to Year-end
There are no changes In direclors and execulives subsequent to year end.



HERITAGE DRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 149 635 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Remuneration Detalis for the Year Ended 31 July 2011

The follewing lacle of pe_awnents and benefits dslails, in respect to the financial year, the companents of remuneration for each member of the key manzgement
personnel for the consolidated graup and, fo he extsnt diffsrent, the fiva group execulives and five company executives receiving he highes! remuneration:

Table of Benefits and Paymenis for the year ended 31 July 2011

Shorflerm Post
bensfits Employiment
2oaf Galary, Fees and Ponslon and Total
Leave superannuathn 3

3 3
Graup Key Management Personnel
GOQODIY Stephen Doneld Affred 14,952 PR E ] 243,276
{Mznaging Director)
McGIBBON Chrizlopher William 232,336 18,760 251,088
(General Menager - shared
sanvices)

47,288 47,054 564,362

Shari-tarm Post
beneflis Employmant
2010 Saulary, Fees and Pansion and Tola!
Leave superannuation H
& $

Graup Key Management Personngl
BEWWART Steven {Mon-Excc 2000 1EC0 21,800
Cliecior) |
McGIBEON Chrislophier Witkamn 206,316 18,631 2240577
{Genera Menagar - shared
services)

22b318 20,461 246,777

Cash Bonuses, Perforimance-Related Bonuses and Share-based Payments

No opflons or bonuses wera on offst as remuneration {o key management personnel and other exacutives durng the year.

This Dirsetars’ Report, incorporating {he Remuneration Repar, is signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

¢

Wr’f o

FAIRFULL Davk‘j'/ﬂohn t?i{ec Chalrman)

Dated this 14th day of Qctobar 2011




Rothsay*

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001
TO THE DIRECTORS OF HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 31 July 2011 there have heen-

(i) nocontraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set cut in the Corporations Act 2001 in ralation to the
audit, and

(i) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Name of Firm Rothsay Chartered Accountants

/A SN

Name of Partner  Graham Swan

Datz 14-Oct-11
Adcress Level 1, 12 O'Connell Street, SYDNEY NSW 2000
3]
Level 1, 12 O'Connell Street, Sydney NSW 2000
GPO Box g42, Sydney NSW ac01
wwwrothsaycom.au Liability Limied
i e by a’scheme approved
Phone: (07) 8815 s400 Fax: (02) 8811 4o |2 ol
Chertered Accountants ABN: 19 087 479 410 EXCELLENCE, Standards Legislation




HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 149 635

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2011

Gontinuing operations

Revenue

Other income

Changes in invantorias

Employee banefits axpense

Sales, markeling and branding expense
Distribution Expanse

Fraight & cartage

Managemenl feas

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance casts

Olher exoenses

Loss hefore income fax

Income lax expense

Losa for the year

Earnings per share

From continuing and discontinued cperations

Basic earnings per share (cents)
Diluted earnings per share (cents)
Fram conlinuing operations:
Basic earnlngs per share {cenis)
Diluted earnings per share [cents)

Consclidated Group

Parent Entity

Note 2011 2010 2011 2040
% % 3 g

2 24652756 7,094,340 260,280 1,178,817

2 140,803 - - -

(12,968,168) (3,940,113}  (107.439)  (918,847)

{3,018,537) (2,241,135}  (44,201)  (388,706)

(3,686,720) (1,167,905 (1,205) (59,428

(664,928)  (347,551) - {36,005)

(150,263) (364,132} 1.903)  (36,005)

- (168,314) R R

(665349)  (183,483) . (32,096}

(798,169)  (172.473) - {77,558}

3(b) _(3,249.808) (1,227518)  (i25619)  (477,871)

3 08381y (2,718,382)  (20.267)  (827.890)

4 - - . _

3 {408,381) (2,718,382) __ [20.967) __ (Bo7,890)
7 (0.09) (1.63)
7 (0.09) (1.82)
7 (0.09) {1.83)
7 (0.09) {1.82)

The accompanying noles form part of these financlal statements.



HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT QF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2011

Consplidalad Group
Note 20114 2010
$ $
{408,381} (2,718.382)

Parent Entity
2014 2010
$ 3
{20,267) (827,880}

Losa for tha year

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive loss far the year {408.381) (2,718,382)

{20,267-} {827.880)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.



HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 81081 149 635

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 JULY 2011

Ceonsolidated Group

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Caslh and cash eguivalenis
Trade and other receivables
Inventaries

Qlher assels

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Qther financial assets

Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Intangible asseis

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Bomowings

Provisions

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings

Deferred tax liabililies

Other provisions

TOTAL NCN-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ABSETS

EQUITY

Issued capital
Accumulated fosses
TOTAL EQUITY

Parent Entity

Note 2011 2016 2011 2010
$ $ $ §

8 168,633 364,136 7,153 50,981
9 2,983,668 950,215 2,948,891 3,005,358
1C 5,015,942 881,409 - 110,000
15 174,538 133,131 406 11,447
8,337,680 2,318,889 2,954,450 3,177,726

11 - - 4,355,362 805
13 gas 221 448,551 - 26,082
18 363,666 - - -
14 £,185,472 1,544,502 - -
6,434,250 1,968,053 4,356,362 26,887
14,771,928 4,318,942 7,309,812 3,204,683

18 3,645,492 2,662,782 5 486,512
11 2,088,268 - 266,645 -
18 7,245 7,246 - -
5,742,006 2,660,028 256,650 486,612

17 4,138,746 770,000 - -
18 22,881 - - -
19 235,597 201,093 - -
4,397,224 871,093 _ - -
10,139,230 3,831,121 266,680 486,512
4,632,698 §65,821 7,053,162 2,718,171

20 16,102,936 1,747,678 16,102,935 11,747 678
(11.470,237) (11.081,8567) (8,049,773}  (9,029507)
4,632,698 556,821 7,053,162 2,718,171

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statemenls.



HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 148 625
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2011

Qrdinary Accumulaled

Note Shqre Lossps Total

Capital
Consolidated Group $ $ $
Balance at 1 August 2009 7,885,008 {8,343,475) [458,465)
Comprehensive income :
Loss for the year - {2.718,387 {2,718,382)
Total comprehensive inconte for the year - {2,718,382) {2,718382)
Transactions with owners, in their capacity as
Shares issued during the year 3,862,672 - 3,862,672
Total transactions with owners 3,862,672 - 3,862,672
Balance at 31 July 2010 11,747 878 (11,061,857) 885,821
Balance at 1 August 2010 11,747,878 (11,081,857) 585,821
Comprehenslve Income
Lass for the year - (408,381) {408,381}
Total comprehensive income for the year - (408,381) {408,381}
Transactions with ownars, in their capacity as
Shares issued during the year 20 4,355,257 - 4,365,257
Total transactions with owners 4,355,257 - 4,354 257
Balance af 31 July 2011 18,102,938 (11,470,237 4,632 698

Crdinary

Share Accumulated Total
X l.osses

Capitai
Parent Entlty ] $
Balance at 1 August 2008 7,885,006 (8,201817) {316,610}
Comprehensive incoms
Loss for he year (827,890} (827.890)
Total comprehensive income for the year - {827,850} (827,890)
Transactions with owners, in their capacity as
Shares issued during the year 3,362 672 - 3,8628672
Total transactions with owners 3,862,672 - 3,862,672
Balance at 31 July 2010 11,747,678  (9,029,507) 2,715,172
Balance at 1 August 2010 11,747,678 (9,020,507} 2,718,172
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year - {20,267} (20,267)
Total comprehensive income for the year - {20,267} {20,267)
Transactions with owners, In thelr capacity as
Shares issued during the year 20 4,356,287 - 4.3B6,287
Total transactlions with owners 4,355,267 - 4,355,257
Balance at 31 July 2011 16,102,935 (9,049,773 7,053,182

The accompanying netes form part of lhese financial statements.



HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 149 635

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Recealpls from customers
Interest received

Paymenis to suppliers and employees

Finance costs

Net cash provided by/{used in} operating aclivities

CASH FL.OWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and eguipment

Purchase of buginess

Purchase of property, pfant and equipmenl

Loans made to subsidieries

et cash provided by/{used in} invesling aclivities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Issue of shares
Procasds from borrowings (net}

Net cash provided byf{used In) financing activities

Nel increase{decrease} in cash held
Cash and cash equivalenis at beginning of financial year
Cash and cash equivaienis acquired on acquisition of

corfrolled enlities

Cash and cash eguivalents at end of financial year

Naote (A}

Consolidated Group Parent Entity

Note 2011 2010 2611 2010

$ ] 3 $
28,447,588 7,061,593 452,091 1,427,283
14,156 2,724 763 824
A (30,832,137) (10,580,344} (645,333} {1,722,014)
{798,168} {172,474} - {77,550)
24a (3,163,582} (3,688,501) {182,470} (371,866)
- 171 - 171
- - - (161}
(369,300) - - -
- - - (2,828,229)
{359,309) 171 - (2,828,152}
- 3232787 - 3,232,787
2,838,149 770,000 148,641 -
2,835,145 4,002,787 148,641 3,232,787
{699,742) 334,457 (43,838) 32,969
8 354,136 19,679 50,091 18,022
504,139 - - -
8 153,533 354,136 7,153 50,851

Payments to suppliers and employees in 2011 includes $982,451 (2010: nil), incurred In connection with relocating Sydney

operations to Melbeurne.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 031 14% 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2011

These consolidated financlal stafements and notes represent those of Harilage Brands Limifed and Conlrolled Ealities (the "Consolidated Group® or “Graup").
The financial statemenls were authosised for issue on 12 October 2011 by the directors of the company.

Note 1 Summary of Signlflcant Accounting Policies

Basis of Praparation
The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared In accordance with Australian Accounting Standards {including Australian
Accounting Inferprelations). ofher authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board and lhe Corporalions Act 2001.

Australian Accounfing Standards set out accounfing policles that the AASE has concluded would resull in financial stafements containing relevant and reliable
information about ransactions, events and conditions. Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards ansures that the fipancial slatemenls and noles also
comply with International Financial Reporling Standards 25 issued by the IASB. Materal accounting policies adopled in the preperstion af 1he financial
statemants ara presenled below and have been consistently applied untess othenvise stated.

The financial repart has been prepared on an accrusls basis and is besed on historical cosis, medified, where applicabla, by the measurement at falr value of
selected non-currant assals, financial assets and financial liabilities.

The financial report was authorisad for Issve on 14 Golober 2011 by the directors of the parent company..

Geing concern basis
Mring tha year anded 31 July 2011, lhe Group incuired negative operaling cash lNows of $3,183,582.

Notwitiistanding the above, the financlal stalamente have heen prepared on a going concern basls which conlemplates the continuity of normal business
sctivilles and realisation of assels and sattlement of llabllitdes In the ordinary course of bushess.

To continug s a golng concern the Group may requirg addilional furding to be secured within tha next year fram sources which may include;

*  deferment of lne repayment of existing borrowings from the major sharcholders;

*  raising additional borrowings from major shareholderss;

v equity capltal ralsing; and

*  the genaration of sufficient funds from operaling aclivities as envisaged in operaling budgets.

Having carefully assessed the uncertainiies refating to likelthood of securing addiional funding, the Group's ability to effectively manage (heir exgenditure and
cash Nows from gperations, the directors believe that the Group will continue W oparate as a going concarn for the foreseeable fulure and therelore if fs
approprisle 1o prepare the inancial stafements on & going concern basis,

fn the avent that Ihe assumplions underpinning the basis of preparation do not occur as anlicipated, there is signilicant uncertainty whather ihe Group will
conlinue o aperals a going cancern. ff the Group is inable ko conlinue as @ going concern it may be required to realise it's assets and extlngulsh s laklitles
ather than In lhe narmal course of businass and at amounts different to those statad in the financial statemants.

No adjusiments have been made to the financial reports relating to the recoverabliity and classificalion of the asset carrving amounls or the classification of
liabilities thal might be necessary should the Group aol continte as 2 golng concern.

{a) Princlptes of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incarporate Ihe assets, liabilities and results of sniities controllad by Heritage Brands Limltzd at the end of the
reporting pariod. A conlrallad entity is any antity avar which Heritage Brands Limited has the abllity and righl to govern the fingnciat and operating policies
80 a3 1o obtaln benefits from the enlify's activities.

Where controlled entitizs have entered or left the Group during the year, the financial performance of those enlities is included only far the periad of the
yaar that they were conlrolied. A list of controlled cntitics is cantained in Note 12 toe the financial slalements.

In preparing the consolidaled financial stalements, a1 inter-group balances and transactions between entiies in the consalidated Group have been
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business Combinations
Business combinalions gcgur where an acquirer obtaing control over one or mone businesses,

A business combination is accounted for by applying the acquisition method, untess it Is a combination involving enlities or businesses under common
conirol. The business combination will be accounted for from tha date that cantrol is atlained whereby the fair value of the identifiable assats acquired and
liatilities {including conlingent fiabilities) assumed is recognised {subject to cerain ifmited examplions).

When measuring Ihe consideration transferred In the business comblnation, any asset or liability resulling from a contingenl consideratian arrangamant is
also included, Subsequent {o initial recognilion, contingent consideralion classified as equity is not remeasured and ite subzaqrant setilemant is accounted
for wilthin equity. Contingenl consideralion classificd as an asset or liabllity is remeasured each reporting pericd to falr valus, recognising any change to fair
walue [p profil or loss, unless 1he change in value can he idenlified as existing at acquisifion data.

All transaction costs incunred in relation to the business combination are expensed to the slafement of comprehansiva incomea,

The acquisition of a business imay result in the recognition of goodwill or a gain from a bargain purcliase.
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 01 081 149635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2011

Gooadwllf

Goodwill Is carded af cost iess accumulated impalrment losses. Goodwill is calculated as the excess of he sunof
{i) 1he constderation transferned;

{ii) any non-controliing interest; and

{iii} the acquisition date fafr value of any previously held equily interest;

over the acquisilion dale falr value of net Identifiable assets acquired.

The acquishion date fair value of the consideration lransferred for a business combination plus he acquisition date fair value of any previcusly held equity
interest shall form the cost of the investment In the: separalz financial statements.

Falr value vpllifts In the value of pre-existing equity holdings are taken to the stalemen! of comprehensive Tncome. Where changas in the valus of such
equity holdings had previously been racognised in other comprehensive incore, such amounts are recycled Lo profit or logs.

Inclieded In the measurement of constderation transferred Is any asset or liahility resulling from a contingent consideration armangement. Subsequent {o
injtiat recognition, contingent consideratlon classified as equity is not remeasured and ils subsequent setiiernent is sccounted for within eguily. Conlingent
consideration classifiet as an assef or a liahility is remeasured each reporting period to fair value through the stalemenl of comprehansive incoma unless
the change i value ¢an be identified as existing at acquisilion dale.

All transantion costs incurred In refation to the business combination are expensed (o the stalemeanl of comprehensive income.
Referto Note 12{h) for information an the gondwilt policy adopted oy Ihe Group lor acquisiions.
Goodwill on acguisilions of subsidiaries is included in inlangible assels. Goodwilt on acquisition of assaciales is Included in invesimenis it associales.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annuelly and is ellocated to the Group's cash ganerafing unifs or groups of cash generating units, represeriing the lowest
favel at which gombwill Is manitored not karger than an operating segment. Gains and losses on the disposat of an entity include the carrying amount of
gooowilt ralaled {o the entity dispossd of.

Changes in tha ownaership inlarests in & subsidiary are accounted for as equity fransactions and da not affecl ihe carrying valves of gooduwill.

Ingoma Tax
The inconie tax expense {revenue) for the year comprises current income lax expense (income) and deferred 1ax expanza {incama),

Gurrent Income: 1ax expense charged to the profit or loss 1s the fax payable on taxable income measured at the amounts expected lo be paid o (recovered
from} the relcvant taxation authority.

Draferred incoma lax expansa reffecls movements in dafarned tax aseet and daferred tax llabliity balances during 1he year as well as unused lax laszas.

Current and deferred income lax expense (income) is clwrged or cradiled outside profit or loss when the tax relates fo items {hat are recognised outside
profit or loss.

Except for business combinations, no deferred incame lax is recognised from the initial recognilion of an asset or Rabillty, whare there is no elfect an
accounting or taxable profif or loss.

Deferred lax assels and liabilittes are calculated at lhe tax rales that are expected to apply to the period when the asset Is realised or (ke liability is settled
and their measuremant siso reflects the manner in which management expacts to recover or settle the carrying amount of the related asset or liability.

Deferred {ax essels relating lo temporary différences and unused tex losses are recognised only fo the extent ihat it Is prabable that futurs laxablc profit will
be available ageinst which the benslits of the deferred tax asset can be utilised.

Where temporary dilferences cxist in rclalion to investmcnls in subsidiaries, branches, associates, and joint ventures, defarred tax asseots and liabilities are
ol recoginised where the timing of the reversal of the temparary difference can be canlrolled and it is not probable that the reversal will ocour in the
fareseeable future.

Currenl fax assets and labilities are offsel where a legally enforceable right of set-off axists and it is inlanded thal net seflamerd or simullanecus
raglisation and setifement af ihe respective asset end liebility will cocur. Defarrad fax assels and fiabllitles are offsat where: (a) a legally enforceable right
of set-off exists; and (b) the deferred tax assels and liabililies relate o incomea laxas lavied by the same taxation authority on eilheor the same taxable enlily
ar dilferant faxahiz enlities where il is intended that net selflament or simultanacus realisation and settfement of (e respeclive asset and liability will eccur
in future periods in which significant amounts of deferrad fax assets or labllitles are expected to be recoverad or seltled.

Tax Consalidation

Harilage Brands Linited and its wholty-owned Auslralinn subsidiaries hava formad an incame tax consclidated Group under tax consolidation legislation.
Fach anlity in the Group recognises its own current and deferred tax assets and llabllilies. Such taxes are measured using lhe ‘stand-alone laxpaysr
appreach o allocation. Current tax iiabliilfes (assets) and doferred tax assets arsing from unused tex losses and 1ax credits in the subsidiaries are
immedialely transferred to the head enfity.

The Group notified the Australian Tax CHice Ihal it had formad an income tax consolldated Group to apply from 1 August 2010,

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cosl and net realisable value. Overhaade ars applied on the basis of norma! operaling capacily. Costs are
assigned on the hasis of weighted averags cosls.



HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 (81 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 34 JULY 2011

fd} Plant and Equipmant

{e}

L]

Each class of plart and equipment is carded af cost or fair value as indicated [ess, where applisable, any accumulaled depreciation and impairment losses.

Plant and egquipment

Plant and squipment are measured on the cost basis and therefore carried at cost less accumulatad depraciation and any accumulated impaliment. In the
event the carrying amount of plant and aquipment is grealsr than the estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount s writtcn down immediately Lo
the estimated recoverable amount and Impalrment losses are recognisad elther [n profit or foss or as & revaluation decrease if the impairment losses relate
to a revalusd asset. A formal assassment of recoverable amount is made when impairment indicators are present (refer to Note 1(g) tar details of
impairment),

The carrying amound of plant and equipment 1s reviewed annually by directors 1o ansure it s not I ¢xcess of the recoverable amount from hese assels.
The recoverable amount is assessed on the basts of the expecled net cash flows that vill be received from the asser's emgployment and subseguent
disposal. The expecled nel cash Nows have been discounted to their present values in detenmining recoverable emounts.

The cost of fixed assets construcled within the conselidatad Group ncludas the cost of materials, direct labour, borrowing costs and an approgriate
proportion of fixed and variable overheads.

Subsequent costs are included In the asset’s carning amount or recognised as a separale assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
econonic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged la lhe stalemenl of comprehensive income during the financial peried in which they are incurred.

Depracialion
The dapreciable amount of ail fixed assels including capitalised Jease assets, is depreciated on a straight-line or written down value basis over the asset's
usaful {ife to the consolidated Group commesncing from the ima tha assaet s hald ready for use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:
Class of Flxed Asset Depreclation Rate
Flant and equipment 15-40%

The assets’ resldual values and usaful lives are reviewed, and adjustad I appropriale, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount e written down immadiataly to ite recaverabla amapnt if the asset's carrying amobnt s greatar (han its estimated recoverable
amount.

Gains and lossas on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amounl. Thase gains and lasses are included fn the slatement of
comprehensive income. When revalued assats are sold, amounts included in the revaheation strplus relating o that asset are {ransfemed (o retained

earnings.

Leases
Leasas of fixed assets where substanlially all the risks and benefits incidental o 1he ownership of the assat, bul not the tegal owmership that is fransferred
to entities in 1ha consalidated Group, ere classified as finance leeses.

Finance leases are cepilalised by recording an asset and 2 liability at the lower of the amounls equal Lo fite fair value of ihe leased praperty or ihe present
valua of tha minimum lease payments, including any guaranlead residual values. Lease paymanls are allocated hatwean the reduction of the lease llability
and the fease inlarest expense for the period.

Leazed assets sre depreciated on g straighi-line basis over the shorler of their estimated vseful lives or the leasea tarm.

Lease payments for operaling leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are charged as expenses in the pariods in which
they are incuired.,

Lease incenlives under operating leases are recognised as a tlability and amortised on a skeaight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial Instruments

Recegnition and Inftlal Measurement
Financiat assets and financial liabilifies are recognised when the Group becomes a party to lhe conlraciual provisions fo the instrumant. For financlal
assels, this is equivatent la the dale that the Group commits itself To eilher lhe purchase ar sale of the assst (i.e. rade date accounling ls adopted).

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair valve plus transaclions costs except where the instrument is classified ‘at fair value through profit or
loss' in which case transaclion cosls are expensed o profit or loss immeadiately.

Classification and Subsequent Measucement
Finance msteements ara subsequenily measured at elthar of falr value, amort/sed cost using the effeclive interest rale method, or cost.

Amorllsed cosf is the amaunt at which the financiat asset or financial lfabitity I1s measured at Inillal recognition less principal repayments and any reduction
for impairment, and adjusted for any cumutaive amorfisation of lhe difference babween thal indtial amount and the matunity amount calculated using the
effeclive intarest method.

Falr valua is determined basad on current bid pricas far all quoled invesimants. Valuation lechalques are applied to delermine Ihe fair value for slf unlisted
securities. Including recel arm's lenath fransactions, reference to similar instruments and option pricing models.

The effecilva interest melnod is used io allocate interest incomea or interest sxpense aver the relevant period and is equivalent to 1he rate that disceunts
estimated fulure cash paymenis or receipts {including fass, transastion coste and olher premiums or discounts} through the expected life {or whan this
cannot be reliably predicted, the condractual term) of the financial Instrument {o the net carving aniount of the financial asset or financial fiability. Revisions
1o expeeted fulure nel cash flows will necessitate an adjustment o the carrying value wilh a consequantial recognition of #n income or expensa In profit or
loss.

The Group dozs not designale any interests in subsidiaries, assoclates or feint venlure enlities as being subject to the requirements of actounting
slandards specifically applicable le financial instruments,
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 81 (081 148 635
AND CONTROLLER ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2011

(i} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assels are classified at ‘fair value through profit or loss’ when they are either held for trading for the purpose of shorl-term profit taking,
derivatives not held for hedging purpases, ar wien they are designated as such te aveld an acceunting mismaleh or ke enable perfarmance evalualion
where a Group of financial assets is managed by key management personnel on & feir value basis in sccordanca with a documenied risk
management or fnvestmant siralegy. Such assets are subsequenlly measured st fair value with changas in carrying valua belng included in profit or

loss.

(i) Loans ant recelvables
Loans and receivables are non-derivalive financial assets with fixed or delerminable payments that are not quoted in an sclive market and are
subszequenlly measured at amartised cost.

Loans and receivables are Included n current assats, whara they are expected to mature within 12 months after the end of the reporling pericd.

{1} Held-lo-maturity invesiments
Haid-to-maturity inveskmanis are non-derivalive financial assels that have fixed malurilies and fixed or determinabla paymeants, and it is the Group's
Intantian to Rold {hese investimants to maturity. Thay are subseguently measured at amorizad cost.

| 12ie-10-maturily invesimante are included in nen-current assets where \hey are expected io maiure within 12 months afler the end of the reporing
period. All other Inveskmanis are ciassilied as current aszats.

Available-for-sale financlal assets

Avsilable-for-sale financial assets are non-desivative financial assets that are either not svifable to be classified into olher categories of financiat
assels aue lo their nature, or they are designated as such by management. They camprise investimenls in lhe 2qbily of other enlities where lhers is
naithar a fixed maturily nar lixed ar determinable payments.

liv

-

They are subsequently measured af fair value wilh changes In such fair value (.6, gains of losses) recognised in other camprehensive income {axcapt
for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and fosses). When the financial assel is derecognised, tha cumulstive gain ar loes partaining {o
inat assel pravicusly recognised it other comprehensive itcome is reclassified inlo prafit or ioss.

Available-for-gale finencial assels are included in non-current assets where (hey are expected to be sold within 12 months alter the end of lhe
raporting pericd. Al olher financial assels ane classified as current assels.

{v) Financlat Llabllilas
Non-derlvative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantess) are subsaquantly measured al amortised cost,

Impairment

At the end of each reporting pericd, e Group assesses whether lhere is objective evidenca thaf a financial instrument has been impaired. In tha case of
availabla-for-sate financial instrumenls, & prolonged decline In the value of the instrument is considered fo delarmine whethar an impairment has arisen.
Impairment losees are racognized in profil or foss. Alse, any cumulativa decling in fair value previously recognised Tn ofher comprehenslve income is

reclassified to profit or loss at tils polnt.

Darecagnltlon

Financial assets are derecognised where (e contractual rights fo recelpt of cash flows expires or the asse! is ransferred to snother pary whareby the
Group no longer has any significanl conlinuing involvement in ke risks and benefils associated with the asset. Financial liabiiities are derecognised whars
the refated obligalions sre eilher discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference between the carrying value of Ihe financlal Hability exiinguished or
transferred fo anotlier party and the fair value of consideralion paid, including Ihe transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities assumad, is recognlsed In profit

or [oss.

Irapairment of Asscts

Al the end of each reporling pericd, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may ke impaired. The assessment will includs the
conzidaration af exlernal and Internal sources of informaltion including dividends received from subsidianas, azscoistez ar jaintly cantrolied entitles deemed
lo be out of pre-acquisilion prafite. i such an indicalion exisls, an impairment {est i= carriad out on tha asset by comparing the recoverable amount of the
assel, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less cosis 1o sall and value In use, fo the assel's carrying amount. Any oxeess of 1he asset's carrying
amount over its recovarable amount is recognised Immedlately in profit or loss, unless he assel is carricd al a revalued amount fn accordance wilh ancther
Slandard {c.g, in accordance with the revaluation modef in ARSE 11G). Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revatualion decresss in
aceordance with that other Slandand,

Where it is not possible o estimale the recoverable amount of an individual assat, the Group estimates the recoverable amounl of the cash.generating unil
1o which the asset belangs.

Impairment testing is performed annually for goodwitt and intanglble assets with Indefinite lives.
Dther Intangibles

Patents and trademarks
Patents and trademarks are recognised al cost of acquisition, Palents and teademarks have a finite life and are carried at cast Tess any accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses.
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 149 35
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2011

Forelgn Currency Transactiens and Balances

Funcilonal and prezentation currency
The functiohal currancy of each of the Group's entifies is measured using the currency of the primary econemic envirgnment in which that enlity operates,
Tha consslidated financlal statamants are presented in Anstraiian doltars which s the parent entify's funcitanal and pressntation currancy.

Transaction and iralances

Forgign curmency fransactions are fransfafed into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreigh cuerency
monelary items are lransiated at lhe year-end exchange rate. Non-monetary ilems measured at histerical cost continue lo be carried at the exchange rale
at Ihe dale of the transaction. Non-monetary ileins measured at fair value are reported al the exchange rale at the date when fair values ware daterminad.

[xchange differencaa arising on the Irenstation of monetery ilems are recegnised in profil or loss, except where deferrad in equity as a qualifying cash flay
or net lnvestmeant hedge.

Exchange differences arising on the translatian of non-monelary ifems are recognised direclly in other comprehensive income to 1he extent that the
underying gain ar loss is recognised in other comprehensive income, athenwise the exchange difference is recognised in 1he profl or loss,

Group companies

The fingncial results and position of foreign operalions whose funchonal currency s different from the Group's presenlation curcency are translated as
foliows:

— assels and liabifities are lranslaled at exchange rales prevailing at the end of the reperiing perind;

— ncome and expenses are franslated at avarags exchanga rates far the period; and

— relained eamings are ranshated al ihe exchange rates prevailing al lhe dale of the transachion.

Exchange differences arising on translation of forelgn operations wilh funclional currencles other than Australian doltars are recognisad in other
comprehensive income and included in the foreign currency translation reserve in the statement of financial position. These differences are recognised in
fhe profit or loss In the periad in which the operation is disposed.

Employea Benefits
Provislon Is made for \he Group's lizbility for empioyee benafits arising from services rendered by smpltoyess {o the end of the reporting perlod. Employes
benefils \hat are expected to be setiled within 1 year have been measurad al the amounts expected ta be pald when the liability Is seilled.

Employce benefits payabla later than ona yaar have been mazsured at the prezent value of the estimated fulure cash outflows to be made for those
benefils. In determining the liability, consideraiion 15 given fo smployea wage fncreases and the probabiiity that the employes may satisfy vesting
requirements, Thase cashfiows are discounted using market yislds on national government bonds with ferme B maturity that mafch the expected tining of
cashflows.

Pravisions
Provislons are recognised when ihe Group has a legal or constructive obligafion, as a resull of pasl events, for which it is probable that an outflow of
ceonamic banefits will result and that culflow ean be rafiably measured.

Provisfans are measured uging Ihe bast estimate of the amounts required o settls the obligelicn at the end of tha reporting period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits avallable on demand with banks, other short-lerm highly fiquid investments with original
malurities of 3 imanths or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafis are reported within short-term borrowings in current liabilities in Ihe slatement of
financial position.

Revenue and Other [ncome

Revenus is measured at the falr value of the consfderafion recelved or recelvable after taking Into account any trade discounls and volume rebates
allowed, When the inflow of consideration is deferred it is Irealsd as the pravision of finanding and is discounted al a rate of interest thal is generally
sccepled in the markel for similar arrangements. The difference befween the amount initially recognrised anrd the amounl ulimately received Is interest

Revenue from the sale of goods 15 recognlsed at the polnt of dellvery as this corresponds to the transfer of significanl risks and rewards of ewnership of the
goods and the cessalion of all involvement In those goods.

Interest revenue Is recognised using the eflectiva infarest rafe method.
Dividend revenua fs recogniead when tha right o receive a dividand hag been establishad.
All ravenua Is stated nat of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

Borrowing Costs
Barrowing costs directly alfributable fo the acquisition, construstion or production of assets that necessarly lake & substantial period of time to prepare for
their infended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for [heir intended vsa or sals.

All othar borrowing costs ars recoqnised in the Incame statement In the perfod Inwhich thay are Incurred.

Goods and Services Tax (G5T)
Revanuaz, expanses and assels are recognised net of lhe amounl of GST, excepl where the amount of GST incurrad ia not recoverable from the

Australlan Taxafon Office (AT10}

Recaivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receiveble or payeble. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payabls 1o, the
ATO is includad with olher receivebles or payatdes in the slatement of financial position.

Cash flows are presenled on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from lnvesiing or finencing activities which ara recoverabla from, or
payahle lc, the ATO are presented as operaling cash flows included in receipts from customers ar paymenls {o suppliers,

Comparatlve Figures
When required by Accounling Standards, comparaliva figures have baan adjustad to conform Lo changes [n presenlation for lhe currenl financial year.

Whaera the Group has relraspectively applied an accounting policy, meade a retrospeclive restalemen] of ilems in lhe financial stalemenis or reclassifiad
iteme in ils fnancial stalemanls, an addiional slaterment of financiat position as at the baginning of the aarliest comparative perlod will be disclosed.
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{q) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgmenls

n

Management evalialas estimalas and judgmants incorporated info tha financial rapart hasad on historlcal knewledge and best reasonably avaitable current
information. Eslimates assume a reasonable expeclation of fulure events and are based on current frends and economic data, oblainad both exdemally
and within the Group.

Kay Estimates

{i) impsirmnant
The Group assesses Impairment at the end of each reparting periad by evaluating conditlons and events specific lo the Group that may be indicative of
impairmenl ifiggers. Recoverabls amaunts of relevant aseels are reagssssed using value-in-use calculations which incorporale various key assumptions.

Wilh respect (o cash flow projections for plant and equipment based in Australia, growth rates of 3% have been factared into valvalion mods!s for Ihe next
five years on lhe basis of menagement's expeciations sround the Group’s continued ability to caplbre market share from competilors. Cash flow growth
rales of 3% subsequent fo this periad have been used as Ihis reflects hislorical indusiry averages. The rates used incorporale allowance for infiation. Pre-
lax discount rates of 10 years governmenl bonds yield rates have been used in all modals.

No impairmant has been recognised in respect of goodwill and rademarks at the end of the reporting period. hould the projected Wwinover figures be less
tharn 209 of budgeled figures incorporated in value-In-use calcutations, an impairment loss may be recognised.

Key Judgemsnts

(! Pravizion for impairmant of Receivables
The directors beliave that provislons for doubliud dabts of $0.198 {2010: 535,038} and the provision for rebates of 3817,217 (2010: Nit} are reasonahls and
that all other trade debtors are fully recoverable as at the and of financial yaar.

New Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods

The AASB has issued new and amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have mandaiery applicalion dates for fulure reporting pariods and
which the Greup has decided nol 1o garly adapt, A discussion of those lufure requirements and their impact on the Greup ia as fallows:

—  AASB % Financial instrumants fDacembar 2410) (appifcable for annual reporting perods commencing on or after 1 Janvary 2013),

This Standard is applicable refrospectively and includes revised requiremsnts for the classification and measurement of financial instrumenls, as welt
as recognition and derecognillon requirements for financlal instruments . The Group has not vet determined any potential impaet on the Tinancial
stafoments.

The key changes made to accounling reqiirements melude;

— gimplifying the elassifications of linancial assels into hose caried at amortisad cost and those tarded at fair valua:

— simplifying the requirements for embedded derivalives;

- removing the tainting rules assodated with held-fo-maturity assets:

— removing the requirernents to separate and fair value embedded derivatives for financial aseels carried at amortised cost;

— allowing an irrevocable election an inilial recegnition to present geins and [osses on invesimants in equity instruments that are not held for irading
in other comprehensive income. Oividends in respect af these investmanis that are a raturn on Investrent can be recognised in profit or loss and
there is no Impalrmenl or racycling on disposal of fha Instrumsnt;

— tequiring financial essels to be reclassified where ihere Is a chenge in an antity's businass modal as they are Inidally classlfied based on: {a) e
ohiactive of the entity’a businasa model for managing 1he financial assets; and (b the charactenistics of the contraciual cash flows: and

— requiring an entily lhat choeses lo measure a financial liability al fair valus to present tha poriion of 1he change in Its fair value dus to changas In
1he antity’s own credil risk in the other comprehensive incoma, except when that wonld create an accounting mismateh, I such a mismatch would
ha created or enlarged, the enlity ie required prasant all changes in fair value {Including the effects of changes in the credit risk of the liability) in
profit or loss.

~—  AASB 2010-4: Forfher Amendmen!s lo Ausiralian Accounting Standacds arising from fha Anpual fmprovemenis Pmyject JAASRE 1, AASE 7, AASE 101
& ANSB 134 and Inferpretation 13] (applicable for annual raporiing pariods commencing on or after 1 Jervary 2071)
This slandard delails numerous non-urgent but necessary changes to accounling slandards arising from the 1ASB's annual improvements project. Key
changes include:
- clarifying the application of AASB 108 prior {o an entity’s first Austrelien Accounting Standard financial statements;
— adding an explicit statement o AASE 7 that qualilative disclosures should be made in the context of 1he quantitetive disclasures fo batter enabla
users 1o evalvate an entity's expoesure 10 risks arising from financial instruments;
— amending AASE 101 10 1he effect that disagaregation of changes in cach component of equity arising from lransactions recognised in other
comprehensive income is required 10 be presented. but is permitled te be presentod in the statement of changas in equity or in the noles;
— adding a number of examples 1o the ilst of events or fransactions that require disclosure undar AASE 134: and
- making sundry editordal amendmenls 1o various Standards and Inlarprefations.

— AASB 2016-7: Amendmsn!s lo Auskalfen Accounling Stendards ansing from AASB § (Dacambar 2010}
AASE 3 4, 5 7 10F, 702, 103, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 137, 432, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Interprefations 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127}
(apples lo poriods degimming on o after 1 January 2013}
This standard makes amendments o a range of Australian Accounting Stendards and Inferpretations as a consequence of the issuance of AASE
Financiat lnsltuments in December 2010. Accordingly, hese amandments will anly apply whan the entity adopts AASE ¢,

This Standard is not expected to impact the Group andfor the Company has not yet determined any potentlat Impagt.
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Note 2 Revenug and Other Incoms

{a) Revenue from continuing operationa
Sales revenue
- sale of goods

QOthar revanug
— interest received
— olner revente

Tolal revenue
Oler income

- olherincome
Totat other income

Intarest revenue fram:
— gther persons
Total inlerest revenue on finencial assels not at fair value through profif of loss

Nota 3 Prolit for the Year

Profil befora income fax from continuing operalions includes the following
specific expenses:
{a} Expenses
Cost ol sales
Inlerest expense on financial fiabilities not al fair value through profit or loss:
- Uttimate paranl entity
— Assoclated companies
— Olher persans
Tolat inance cost
Ermployee beneflis expanse
— cmployee benefits expense
Bad and doubtiul debis:
— frade receivables
Total bad and doublfut dabts
Rental expense on operating leases
— minimum l2ass payments

Loss un disposal of propery, plant and equipmant
rite-dovm of Inventerlzs 1o nat realisable value
Wiile-off of ohsolate stack

(h) Significant Revenue and Expenses
The following significant revenue and expense ltems are relevant In
explaining the financial performance:
GCosls associated with relogaling the Sydnsy operations to Melbourna

Consolidaled Group
2011 2013
5 3

24,536,803 7.038,662

Parent Entily
2011 210
5 5

254036 1,178,003

24,538 493 7,038,692 254,035 1,178,083
14,156 2,724 763 924
101,797 52924 5482 100
115,863 535,648 £.245 724
24,852,758 7,094 340 260,280 1,178,817
140,603 - - -
140,603 - - -
14,168 2,724 763 624
14,158 2,724 763 824
Cansalldated Group Parcnl Entity
2011 2010 2011 2010
$ $ § $
12,666,168 3,940,113 107,438 918,847
- 43,138 16,605
205,629 47470 13,981
502,540 78,865 - 47,873
788,189 172,473 - 77,559
3,018,557 2,241,135 44,291 468,796
{8,123) 30,469 30,367
{8,123) 30,169 30,367
88,000 - -
44,068 40,549 28,082 -
8429 - - -
255,007 - -
983451 - - -
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Hofo 4 Income Tax Expense
Consolidated Groun Parent Exntity
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note $ $ $ $
{a) The companents of tax expanse comprise:
Current tax - . R -
Deferred lax 18 - - R -
{6} The prima facie lax on profit from ordinary activitles
hefore income tax fs reconciled b the income fax as
lallows:
Prima facia {ex payable on profit from ordinary
aclivilies belore income tex at 30% (2010: 20%)
— consolidated Group (122,514) {815.515) - -
— pareat enlity - - {6.080) {248,367}
Add:
Taw affact of:
— olher non-allowabl items 1,987 331,808 - 8,332
— Daferred tax assels not broughl to account 232,274 483,708 8,080 240,035
111,747 ) {0 {0
Less:
Tax affect of:
— Olher deductible expenses 111,747 - . -
incone lax attibufable o cotity - - - -
Thae applicabla welghled average effective lax rales are as follows: 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Deferred 1ax assets not brought to account, the banefit of which will only be realised i the condilions for deductibilify set cul in Nate 1(b) oceur.
Nofe & ntarests of Koy Management Personnel {KMP)
Rafer to the Remuneralion Report contained in the Birectors” Report for details of the remuneration paid or payatile to each member of the Group's key
managemant personnst for the year ended 31 July 2011,
The totals of remuneration paid to KMP of Lhe company and thie Group during Lhe year are as follows:
2011 2010
§ 5
Shorf-term employee bensfits 547,264 226,316
Fost-employrgnl benefits 47,094 20,461
504,362 246,777
KMP QOptions and Rights Holdings
The number of apions over ordinary shares held during the financial yaar by gach KMP of the Group Is as fallows:
Balance al Granted a3
heginning of romuneration Exorcised tiwer changes  Balange atend  Vested durlng Vestad and Vasted and
31 July 2011 year during the year  durdsg the year  during the year of year e year exercisable unexarclaakbls
GHAT TAS Nicolas (Ex - - - - - - - -
Director)
Balance at Granted as
baginning ef  remunaration Exarcisad Other changes Balance atend  Vastod durdng Vasled and Vestad and
31 July 2010 year durlng the year during the year duwring the year of year tia year gxercisable unexescisable
GHATTAS Mizolas [Ex 1,000,000 - - {1,000,0001 - - - -
Elrector}
1 000,000 - - 1,000,000 B . - .
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KMP Shareholdings

The number of ordinary shares in Heritape Brands Limiled held by each KMP of the Group during the financial year is as follows:

31 July 2011 Balance at Grantad as Issued on Othar changes  Balance at end
baglnnlng cof ramuneratlon pxerclze of during the yaar of yaar
yagr during the year optors during
the year
GODDEY Stephen Donald Afred (Managing Director) - - 18,200,034 18,299,034
MgGIBBON Christepher (Gansral Managear - shared 3,070,000 - - - 3,070,000
Seqvices)
3,075,000 - - 13,283,034 21,368,034
fszued on
Eabaree st Granfed as excrelse of
hagkaning of ramunerallon  options during  Othor changes  Balance at end
31 July 2010 yoar durfng the vear the year durlng tha vaar of yaar
McGIBBON Christopher {Gencral Manager - shared - - 3,070,000 3,074,060
SEIVICES}
GHATTAS Nicolas (Ex Director) 1,275,000 - - - 1,275,000
1,275,000 - - 3,070,000 4 345 000
Other KMP Transactions
IFar interasts in ordinary shares held by KMP refated enlitiss refer to the Direclors’ Report.
There have been no other iransastions involving equity insfruments other than those dascribead In the tables abave.
For detalls of olhar ransaclions with KMP, rafer to Note 27: Relaled Parly Transactions,
For defalls of ipans ta KMP, rafer to Note 27: Related Party Transactions.
Nota 6 Audiiors’ Remuneration
Consolidated Graup Parant Entity
2011 2010 2011 2010
% 3 § 3
Rernuneration of the auditor of the parent enfity for:
— auditing or reviewing the fimancial report 30,000 25,000 - -
— layation services provided by related practice of auditor 11,660 5,469 - -
All amounts payahla to the audilars of the Company were paid by a Graug subsidiary.
Note 7 Earaings pet Share
Consalidated Group
201 2010
3 3
{a) Recanciliation of earnings lo profit or loss
*rofil {408,381} {2,718.282)
Eamings used lo calculsle basic EPS {408,381} {2,715,382)
Earnings used in the calcutalion of dilulive EPS {408,381} (2,718,382)
{h) Raconcifiation of earnings fo profit or loss from continuing operations
I*roll from condinuing cperalions {408,381} {2,715,282)
Earnings used fo caleulale basic EPS [ram eontinuing cperations {408,281; (2,713,302)
Earnings used in the calculation af difufive EPS from conlinuing oparations {408,381} (2,718,382)
No. N,
{€} Wheighted average number of ordingry shanes cutstanding during the year used in
calcsilating basiz EPS 451,668,531 166,605,773
Weigled average number of dilutive options outslanding 250,000 1,000,000
Waightad average number of ordinaiy shares oulstandging during Whe year used in 451,908,531 167,605,773

calcutating dilulive EPS
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Note 8 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2041 2010 2011 2010
8 $ 5 $
Gash af bank and in hand 158,533 354,136 7,153 50,991
24 158,533 54,136 7,153 50,991
Reconcllfation of ¢ash
ash at tha end of the Fnanciat year as shown in the statement of cash
flows is reconellied to lams in the slatement of financial position as folfows:
Cash and cash equivalents 158,533 364,136 7,153 50,691
158,533 354,136 7,153 50,901
A finating charga over cash and cash eguivalenls bas been provided for certain debt. Refer to Nole 17 for further delalls,
Nofe 8 Trade and Other Receivables
Note Consolidated Groupn Parent Entity
2011 2010 2011 2010
% 5 5 $
CURRENT
Trade recaivablas ad 31,815,172 989,261 11,305 216,174
Provision for impairment fcli) {8,199) {3%,038) {1,240) {38,0368)
Provigion far rebates, incenlives, and discounts {B17.317) - - -
2,088,658 950,213 10,365 177,138
Amounts receivable from:
— wholly-awned subsidiaries - - 2836226 2 R23222
Tatal current trade and othar raceivables 2,948,656 850,213 2,946,801 3.005.358

(a) Provision For Impairment of Recelvables
Current trade and \erm receivables are non-inlerest bearing Ioans and generally on 60-day terms. Non-current krade and term recelvables are assessed for
racoverabllity based on the underlying terms of the contract. A provision for impairment is recognised when there is objective evidenee that an individual
trade or term fecelvable is impaired. These amotints have been included in the other expenses itam.
Movament in the pravision for impairment of receivables is as follows:

Opening Charge for the Amounis Closing
Note Balance Year Written OFf Balance
01.08.09 31.07.10
Conselidated Group 3 3 3 $
(i} Current trade receivables 21,188 17,840 - 39,038
21,188 17,840 - 39,038
Opening Charge for the Amounls Closing
Ralance Year Writtan O Balance
01.08.10 3107141
Consalldatad Group 5 S $ $
iy Curent trade recelvables 38,038 - 20,839 9,14p
38,038 - 29,339 9,198

Credit riak

The Group has no sigaificant concentration of credit risk wilh respect to any single counter parly or group of counter parties ather than those receivables
specifically provided for and menticned within Note 9. The class of assels descibed as Trade and Qlher Receivables is considered to be the main source of

credit risk refated to the Group.

The follawing tabla defails the Greup's trade end olher receivables exposed lo credit fisk {prior {o collateral and olher credil enhancements) with ageing anelysis
and impairment provided for therean. Amaounts are considared as ‘past dug’ when the debt has not been setlled wilh the terms and condilions agraed batwasen
lhe Group and the customer or countar parfy fo the lransaclion. Recsivables that are past due are assessed for impairment by ascenaining sotvency of the

debtors and are provided for where there are specific circumstances indicating that the debt may nol be fully repaid to the Group.
The balances of recelvables that remain within inilial trade lerms {(as delailed in the table) are considered Lo be of high credit quality.

Pasl due but nol impaired
Cansolidated Group Past dus and {days ovardus) Within inilial
Gross Amount impalred =30 31-60 61-80 B trade tarms
2011 $ $ 3 3 ¥ $ 3
Trade and tarm recalvablas 3,815,172 {9,198) 1,208,234 1,052 251 302,842 14,718 1,239,329
Total 3,815,172 (9,199) 1,206,234 1,052,251 302,642 14,715 1,239,329
Pas! due but not impaired
Cansolidated Group Past due and {days overdus) Within initisl
Grass Amaunl impaired <30 31-80 B1-90 =40 frade terms
2010 $ 3 5 S $ % 5
Trade and term receivables 988,251 {39.038) 154 850 68,785 55,990 140,944 567,673
Total 988,251 {39,038 154,859 63,785 86,380 140,944 587,673
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Past due but not impaired
Pareni Entity Past due and (days overdue) Within iniliat
Gross Amount impaiced =30 3180 61-90 =80 trade tarms
2011 $ § $ $ § ] 3
Trade and lerm receivables 11,805 1,240} . - - - 11,905
Total 11,805 11,2401 - - - 11,905
Past dug bul not impaired
Parent Entity FPast due and {days overdue) Withln inilial
Gross Amount impeired <30 31-60 51-90 >0 trade terms
2010 $ 3 $ % 5 § 3
Trade and 1erm recefvables 216,174 {38,038} 22,871 21,130 11,892 110,783 49,398
Tolal 216,174 {35,038} 22,471 24,130 11,882 110,783 49,398

The provision is provided for past due and impaired amount and yel 1o be vrilten off.
Mailfier the Group nor parent enlily holds any financial assefs with ferms that have been renegotiated, but which vould atherwise be past due or impaired.

{d) Financial Assets Classiflet as Loans and Receivahles

Trade and other Recelvables
— Taotal current
Financial assels

(e} GCollateral Pledged

Nate

28

A Hoaling charge over liade receivables has been provided lor cedain debt. Refer ka Note 17 for fudher datails.

Note 10 inventarles

GURRENT

At lower of cast or net realisable value:
Finlshed goods at cost

Provision kor slow moving! obsolete stock

Note 11 Other Financial Asscts

NON-CURRENT
Cther invesiments
Tolal non-current assats

{a) Other investmenls
NOM CURRENT
Shares in subsidiarias

Note 12 Conirollad Entitles

{2} Controlled Entitics Consolidated

Subsidiaries of Herlage Brands Limitad :
Herilage Brands (Auslralia) Pty Lid
Innoxa Graup Ply Lig

Innoxa Holdings Ply Ltd

Innoxa Marks Phy Lid

Incofats Pty L

Soda Brands (NZ) Limited

Soda Brands (UK) Limited

SO Distributlons Py Lid **

Salan Only Ply Lig **

Kislani Phy Lid **

Note

Note

114a)

Counlry of Incorporation

Australia
Australia
Auisiralia
Ausiralia
Australia

New Fealand
Uniled Kingdom
Australia
Ausfralia
Austiralia

* Percenlage of voling powsr i in praportion to ownership

** Daregistration of non-oparating entities
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Coneolidaled Group Parent Entity
20101 210 2011 2010
5 $ S 3
2,988658 950,213 2,945,801 3,005,358
2,088,658 950 g 13 2,944 891 3,005,358
Consclidated Group Parent Cntity
2011 W10 2011 20140
§ & § 8
5,502,633 B&1.400 110,000
{438,651} - -
5,015 942 281,409 - 110,000
Consolidated Group Parant Enllty
2011 2010 2044 2010
3 % $ 3
- - 4,355,162 805
- - 4,155,362 305
- 4,355,362 805
- 4255362 805
FPorcentage Owized {%%5)"
2011 2014
100% 0%
100% 1060%
100% 100%
160% 100%
100% 1006%
100% 100%
00% 100%
0% 100%
0% 106%
0% 100%
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(b} Acquisitlon of Cantrolled Entitiea

Qn 6th August 2010 the parent enlity acquired $00% inferesl ia tleritage Brands (Australia) Ply Lid {formerly Creative Brands Pty Limlled)

- Purchase consideration:

- 217,782 810 ordinaey shares in Herilage Brands Limiled

Lass:
Gash
Receivables
repaid expenses
inventones
Praparty, plant and equigrment
Intangible assets {including defarred tax aszets)
Payables
Loans & bomrowings
Deferred tax liabifilies
Provision for employces benefits

tdantifiable nasals acgulred and llabilities assumed

Goodwill (i)

Acquiree's
carrying
amount Falr value
$ $
4,355,256
4 356,256
604,139 504,138
3,164,974 3,164,974
129,563 128,553
2,734,608 2,734,805
776,776 778,776
2852210 2,982,210
{3,978 463) {3,078 463)
{2,618 865) (2.6G13,865)
{22 881) {22,881}
{334.318) (334,318}
3,307,830 3,307,934

1,047,328

. The directors beliove the receivablas ara lully racovarabla and no provision for impalrment is required.

I The geodwill is aliributable to the profitability of the sequired business and the significant synargias expected to arse after the Group's acquisition of

Heritage Brands (Australia) Pty [id (formarly: Creativa Brands Pty Ltd).
No amount of the goodwill is deductible for fax purposes.

Nate 13 Proparty, Plant and Equipment

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipmant:

d cost

Accumulated depreciation

t easehold raprovements

At cost

Arccumutaled amortisation
Total Leasehold Impravements
Tatal plant and equipmsnl

{a} Mavamenid in Carrylng Amounts

Movements in careying amounts for ach class of plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of Lhe currenl inanclal vear.

Consolldated Group:
Batance af T August 2008
Additions

Depreclation expense
Bafance at 31 July 2010
Additions

Deprecigtion expense
Balance at 31 July 2011

Parent Entity:

Balance al 1 August 2009
Disposals

Deprecistion axpense
Balance at 31 July 2010
Disposals

Balance af 31 July 2019

Consolidated Group Parent Ertily
2011 2010 2311 2010
§ 5 ] $
5384615 1.262.618 - 441,958
(4,502,944} {814,067) - {415,576)
851671 448,551 - 28,082
44 BT5 - - -
(41,125} . - -
3,550 - - -
585,221 448,551 - 26,082
Leasehold Plant and
Improvements  Equipment Total
5 S g
£8,340 58,349
8201489 820,489
(430,287} {430,287}
- 448 551 448,551
44575 4,121 897 4166,672
{41.125) {3,688,377) {3.730,002)
3,550 881,671 8B5S 221
58,345 58,349
(171) (171}
{32,006) {32,098)
. 23,082 26,082
(26,082) (26,082}
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HNota 14 Intangible Assela
Corneolidated Group Parent Entity
2011 20410 2011 2019
8 L3 & b
Goodwill
Cost 2,596,828 1,549,502 - -
Nat carrying valug 2,688,828 1,549,502 . -
Trademarks and licencaa
Cost 2,588 644 - - -
et carnrying value 2588644 - - -
Tola! intangibies 5,185.472 1,548,002 - -

Consolidated Group:
Geoodwill Tragemarks &

Licences
5 3

Year endad 31 July 2010
Balance at the beginnlng of year R R
Additions 1,649,602

1,548,502 -
Year pnded 31 July 2011
Aalance at the beginning of year 1,549,602 -
Additlons 1,047 326 2,580 544
Closing value at 31 Gy 2011 2 596 823 2,588,644

Intangible assels, other than goodwill, have finlte useful lives. Howsver, no amortisation expenses are provided in the statement of comprehansive income.
Goadwill has an infinite life.

impairment disclosures
Goodwill is dliocalad {o cash.generaling units (brands} which are based on fhe Group's veparting segmenls

2011 2010
§ &)
Bistribution segment 2,546,828 1,549,502
Total 2,506,828 1,549,502

‘The recoverable emount of each cash-generating unif above is determined based on value-in-use cateulations. Value-in-use is calculated based on the presenl
value of cash flow projectians over a 10-year peried with the period exlending beyond five years extrapalaled using an sslimaled grovih rale. The cash flows
are discounted uging the yield of 10-year gavernmeni bonds at the beginning of the budget periad.

The follewing essumptions were used in the value-in-use calculations:
Grovdh Rate  Discount Rate
Oigtribulion segment 3% 10 yeer gevernment bonds yiald rata

Management has based the value-In-use caledations on budgats for each repariing segment. These budgets use historical weighlad average growth rates to
project ravenue. Cosls are caleufalad kaking Into account histarical gross marging as well as estimaied weighted average inflation rates over Ihe pericd which
are consistent with inflation rates applicable lo the locations in which the segmenls operate. Discaund retes are pre-tex and are adjusted fo incorporaie risks
associated willi a parlicular segmant.

Naote 15 Other Assets

Consofdalad Group Parent Entity
2011 2010 2011 2010
3 3 $ $
CURRENT
FPrepayrents 163,265 129,997 - 11,447
Qther assels 11,273 3,134 408 -
174,538 133,131 408 11,447
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Note 16 Trade and Cther Payables
Nafa Consolidaled Group Parenl Entity
2011 2010 2011 2010
s $ $ 5
CURRENT
Unsecured labilities
Trade payablas 2,954,705 1,058 634 - 261,182
Sundry payables and accrued 8xpenses 413,380 1,373,905 5 225,330
Amounts payable ke:
— olhar related parties 270 - G.540 - -
— Employees banefits 248,407 213,652 - -
3,646,492 2,652,782 4 438,512
Nofe Consofidated Group Parent Enfity
201 2010 2011 2010
$ § $ 5
{a) Financial liabilities al amortised cost classified as trade and olher payables
Trade and vlher payables
— Total current 3,546,482 2,662,782 5 485,512
3646402 2,862 782 5 488,512
Less annual leave antitlamants {248,407} {213.652)
Financlal fiabilities as trade and olher payables 28 3,398,085 2,439,130 5 486,512
Note 17 Borrowings
Note Consolidated Graup FParent Entity
201 2010 2011 2010
3 s § $
CUERENT
Lease fability 21 78,582 - - -
Related companlas - - 258,645 -
: 78,082 - 258,645 -
Becured liabllilles
Debtor finance - Scotlish Pacific Business Finance Pty Ltd 17a.c 2,008,886 - -
2 003685 - - -
Tolal current borrowings 2,088,248 - 250,645 -
NON-CURRENT
Majar shareholder (Maximize Equity Py Ltd} 949,431 385,000 - -
Major shareheider (Soul Private Eguity Lid) 1.016,282 385,000 - -
Major sharehielder (Rawlo lnternational Ine) 1,538,000 - -
Major shareholder (Olhers) 635,033 . - -
Total non-current borrowings 4,138,748 770,000 - -
Tolal borcowings 28 6,227,014 770,000 256,645 -
Cansolidatad Group Parent Entity
2011 2010 2011 2010
3 $ $ 5
fz) Totat current and non-current secured liabillttes:
Debtor finance - Seottish Pacific Business Flnance Pty Lid 2,009,886 - - -
Retated enfilies (Major shargholders) 4,138,746 770,000 -
8,148,432 F70,000 - -
{4 The carrying ameunts of non-current assets
pladged as secuiily arg:
Fixcd charge over fixed assets £85,221 d48 551 - 25,082
885,221 448,551 - 26,082

{c} Collaterai provided

Financial assets that have been pledged as part of the total collateral for the benefit of secured debt are as followa:-

L ease liabililies are secured by 1he undedying leased assels.

i) Financial asscis that have been pledged as part of (he tofal collateral for the benefit of Scoltish Pacific Business Finance Py Ltd are as follows:

Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
201 2010 2011 2010
3 § ] $
Cash and tach aquivalents 8 158,433 354,138 7.1583 80,991
Trade recelvables 9 2,088,656 950,213 10,668 177,138
Total inanclal assets pledgad 3,147 188 1,304,349 17,818 228,127

The collaterat aver financial assefs represents a first fixed and floating charge over financial assels of Herilage Brands {Australia) Phy Ltd and sscond fixed

and flealing charge over financial assets of Heritage Brands Limited and Incolabs Pty Lid.

The Scallish Pacific Busitess Finance foans caries a current variable rate of interast @ 12% per annum.

1} The sharehalders’ loans are secured by lirst ranking fived and floating charge over assats of Harilage Brands Liniled, lnnoxa Group Ply Lid, Innoxa
Holdings Ply Lid, Innoxa Marks Ply Lid and Incolabs Ply Lid carrying 2 fixed rale of interest ab 10% per annum.
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Note 18 Tax

Deterred 1ax assets not brought (& account, the benefits of which will anly be realised il lhe candilions far deduclibility set oul in Note 1{b) occur:

- temporary diffarencas $157,244 (2010: $353,274)

- tex losses: operating losses $2,267,560 {2010 31,715,483}

The recovarabilify of deferred tax assets and deferred tox liabilities transferred fram Heritage Brands {Ausfralia) Ply Lid (farmery; Creative Brands Pty Lidy is
recognised af tha fransferred cost. However, after the tax consolidation enlries are avaiteble, this amounl may change.

Noto 19 Provisions
Consolidated Group Parent Enlity
2011 2010 2011 2010

CURRENT 3 5 5 S
Shorlterm Employes Benefits

Opening balance al 1 August 2010 7,246 - - -

Additianal provisions - 7.246 -

Balance ai 31 July 2011 724G 7,246 - -

Consolidated Graup farant Entity
2011 2010 201 201a
NOM CURKENT 3 3 $ 5
Long-term Employee Benefils
Opening balance at 1 August 2010 201,003 - - -
Addiflonal pravisiens 34,504 201,093 - -
Balanca at 31 July 2011 238,587 201,093 - -
Analysis of Total Provielona Consolidated Greup Parent Enlity
2011 210 2011 2010
5 $ 3 §
Currenl 7.246 7,245 -
Non-current 235,587 201,083 -
242,843 208,329 -

Provigien for Long-term Employee Beneallts
A provision has been recagnised for employee enlilernents relafing o fong service leave. In calculating the present value of fulure cash flows in respect of Jong
service leave, the probability of long service leave being teken is based on hislarical deta. The messurement and recognition criteria relating lo employee

bancfits have baen included in Note 1.

Note 20 Issued Capital

Consolideted Group Parent Entity
2011 2010 2011 200
5 $ $ §
457,822,626 (2010: 239,859,825) fully pald ordinary shares 16,102,935 11,747,678 16,102,935 11,747,678

18,162,835 11,747 678 16,132,935 11,747,678

Gonsolidated Group Parent Entity
(&) Ordinary Shares 2014 2049 2011 2010
No. No. No. Ma.
At the beglnning of the reparting period 239,858,825 43,136,208 235,858,325 46,156,208
Shares issued during the year
— 30/10£2008 - £70,000 - 570,000
— 1EA22009 - 193,133,617 - 193,133,517
— BI812010 217,762,810 - 7,762,810
At tha end of the repaniing perdoed 457 622,635 230,859,825 457822635  239,859.825

Ont 0BIG8/0, the company issued 217,762,810 ordinary shares (o compleie the acquisition of Haritage Brands (Australia) Ply Ltd (formerly: Crealive
Brands Ply Lid).

{&} Optlans
iy Forinformatfon relating to tha Heritage Brands Limited employee aption plan, which has now ceased, including datsils of apfions issued, axerclsed
and lapsed during the financlal year and the oplions culstanding at yaar-and. Refar ko Mote 25: Share-based Payments.

iy -Forinformation relating to share aplians issued to key management personng! during Ihe financial year. Refer [o Mote 25: Share-bassd Paymsnls.
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{©) Capltal Management
Managemeant conted! the capitat of the Group in order 1a maintain a good debl ta equiky ralio, provide the shareholders with adequate returns and ensure

that the Group can fund its operallons and continue a3 a going cancern.

The Group's debl and capilal includes ordinary share capital and firancial lfabilities, supported by financiat assets.

There are no externally imposed capital requirements.

Management effeclively manages the Group's capilal by assessing the Group's financial risks and adjusting its capilal stnuctors in response to changes in
these risks and in the market. Thesse raspansas include the management of deht ievels, distributions fo shareha!lers and share 1ssuas.

There have bean no changes in the strategy adopled by management to conlrol the capital of the Group since the prior year. This sfrafegy is lo ensure that
lhe Group's gearing ratio remains below 100%. The gearing rakios for the year ended 31 July 2011 and 31 July 2010 are as lallows:

Consolidated Group Pareny Entity
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note 3 $ 8 &
Total borrowings 16, 1% 4,473,508 3,422,782 256,650 466,512
Less casi and cash equivalents 8 {168.633) {354,136) {7,163} {60,981}
Net dobl 4,714,873 3,060,646 243497 435,621
Total equity 4.532,688 GA5,821 7,053,162 27181471
Total capltal 14,347 6871 3,734 467 7,302,655 3,153,692
Gearing ratio £8% 82% 3% 14%
Note 21 Capital and Leasing Commitmants
Consolidated Group Pareni Entity
2011 2010 2011 2010
Nole 5 3 $ b3
{a) FInance Leasa Commitments
Payatle — minimum Jease paymenls
— not [ater than 12 months 74,582 - R -
Present vatug of minimum lease paymants 17 78,582 - - _
Consolidated Group Parenl Entity
2011 2010 2011 2010
{b} Operating Lease Cormmitments 5 s 5 %
Non-cancellable operating leases contracled for but not capitallsed in
the financial stalemenis
Payabie — minimum lease payments .
— notialar than 12 months 363,621 - - -
363,621 - - -

The properly lease is a non-canceliable lease with a lhree-year term, wilh renl payable monthly In advance. Contingant rental provisions wilhin lhe lease
agreemenl require the minimum lease payments shall be increased by 4% per annum, The Group may exercise the second option to renew the lease at
tha end of firsl aption of two-year term for an additional larm of two years on 15 Aprif 2012. The lease allows for subletting of all lease sreas.

Hote 22 Contingent Liabifitics and Contingant Assets

Consolidated Group Parent Enlily
2011 2040 2011 2010
§ % % 5
Eslimates of the patential finansial effeet of contingent llabliifies that
may hacoma paysble:
At balange date the Company had no contingent Labflilles or conlingent
azgels. - 157.017 - 157,017

Nate 23 Operating Segmenls

Segmant Information

Identification of reportable segments
The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reporis thal are reviewed and used by the board of diractors (chisf opearating deelslon

makers) in assessing performance and in delermining Ihe allocation of resources,

Tha Graup iz managed primarily ¢n the basis of produc] calegory and service offerings since the diversificalion of the Group's apserafions inherently have
nolably different risk prafiles and parformanca ssseseman criteria. Oparaling sagmeanta are tharafare datarmined on the same basis.

Reporiable segments disclosed are based an eggregeting operating segments where the segments are considered {o trave simitar sconomic charactaristics
and are also simitar with respact to the follewing:
— fhe producls satd andior services provided by lhe scgment;
— the type or class of cuslomer for the products or service; and
- the distribution method.

Tynes of products and services by segment
(i Distribution
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The dislribution segmenl distributes Heritage Brands Limited 's slock ftems both domeslicatly and Intermnatlanaily.

Basia of accounting for purposes of reporling by operating segments

()

)

)

{

s

{c

e

)

Arcounting policies sdopled

Unless staled otherwise, all amounls reported to the Beard of Diractors as tha chlaf daclsion maker with respect 10 aperating sagments are datermined in
accordance with accounting pelicles that are conslstent to those adopted in the annual financial staternente of the Group.

inter-segment fransastions

An Infernally dstarmined fransfer price is set for all inter-scgment sales, This price is re-set quarterly and is based on what would be realiscd in the event
the salewas made to an external pary 2l arm's length. All such transaciions are gliminaled on consolidation of the Group's financial statements.
Corperale charges are allocated o reporting segments based on the segment's overall proportion of revenue generafion within the Group. The Board of
Drectors halieves this is reprasentative of likely consumption of head office expendilure that should be used in assessing segment performance and cost
recoveries.

Infer-segmant luans payable and receivable are initially recognised at the consideralion receivedito be received net of transaction costs. if intersegment
Inans recsivabla and payable are not on cormmercial ters, these are not edjusted to fair velue based on market interest rales. This palicy represents a
departure from that applied {a 1he stalulary Brancial slalemenls.

Sepment assals

Where en assel is used across multiple segments, the asset |s alincated o that sagmanl that receives the majorily of economic value from that assel, tn
Ihe majority of instances, segmenl assels are clearly identifiable on 1he basis of thefr nature and physicat location.

Segment liabllifies

Liabilitias are alfocaled to segments where thare is direct nexus between he incurrence of the liabilily and 1he operetions of the segment. Borrowings and
{ax liabilities are generally considared ta relate to the Group as a whole and are not elloceted. Segmend liabilities include trade and other payebies and
certain direct borrowings.

Unallocated llams

The following items of revenue, expense, assets and liabilities are not allocated 10 oparafing seamends as thoy are not considered part of the core
operations of any =agment:

+ Net geins on disposal of available-for-sale investmenls

+ impairnent of assets and other nor-recurring items of sovenue or cxpense

+ Ingome tax expense

» Defarred fax assets and liabifilfas

» Gurrent tax liabililies

 Qther financial tiabiliftes

+ inlangible assols

Segment performance

Wholesate

Distribution

and Saies Total
H July 2011 $ $
REVENUE
xternal salas 24,638 600 24,638,600
Interest revenua 14,154 14,158
Talal segment revanire 24 652 756 24 B52 ThHE
Reconciifation of segment reévanus fo Group revenue
Other revenue 140,693
Total Group revenug 24,793,359
Sagment net preflt from cantinuing operations
befare 1ax (408,381) (408,381}
Nel profit before lax from continulng operations (408,381}

Wholesale T

Distribufion

and Sales Totad
31 July 2010 $ $
REVENUE
External sales T.058,692 7,038,692
interest revenue 2724 2724
Total aegment revenue 7,041,416 7.041.416
Recanciliztion af segment revenue Lo Group revenue
Cther ravenue 52,924
Tolal Group revenua 7,094,340
Segment nel profit from ¢ontinulng operations
irefore fax {2,718,382) £2,718,3582)
Recanciliation of segment result fa Group net profitlcss before tax
Nat profit hefore tax from confinuing aperaliona _ (2,718,38%)

28



HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 81 481 149635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2011

(i) Segment assets

Wholesale
Diglribution
and Sales Tetal
31 July 2011 $ $
Segmenl aggets 14,771,528
Segmeant asset for the period:
—- sggment asset 23,558,091 23,555,091
23,553,091 23,558,081
Reconcilizion of segmant assets fo Group assels
Intersegrment eliminations {8,786,163)
Total Group assets 14,771,628
Wholzsale -
Disfrlbufion
and Sales Total
31 July 2010 $ $
Segment assots 4,318,942
Segment assat increases for the period:
— sogment asset 3,247,776 3,247,776
3,247 776 3,247.776
Recancilialion of segment assets to Group assets
inlarsagment increase 1,089,166
Total Group assels [ !318!942
{iiy Segment llabllltles
Wholasale
Distribution
and Sales Tofal
31 July 2014 $ $
Segmant llabilltles 168,239,828 18,235,828
Recancl Ratfon of segment liabilities 1o Group liabilides
Inferscgment eliminations (6,100,535}
Total Group liabliities 10,138,230
Whelasale
Distribution
and Sales Total
31 July 2010 $ $
Segmeant llzbilitlas 8,812,873 8,812,873
Reconciilatlon of segment Fabilitias 1o Group liabitities
Intersegment eliminations (6,281,652
Total Group liabilities 3,631,121

{iv}

vl

HNote 24

@)

Assets by geographical region

Tha Iocation of sagmant assets by geographical localion of the assels is disclosed betow:

JiJduly 2041 31 July 2010

% $
Ausiralia 14,771,925 4,316,939
New Fealand 1 1
United Kingdom 2 2
Total Assets 14,771,928 4,318,942

Malar custemers

Tha Group has a number of cuslamers to wham it provides bolh preducts and services.

Gash Flow Information

Raconciliation af Cash Flow from Operatlons with Profit
after Income Tax

Profit after income tax

MNan-cash flews in profil
Darrecialion

Net {(gainMloss on disposal of property, piant and

equipment
(Increase)fdecreass in frade and larm recelvables
{Increaselidacraase in ather assels
(Increaseifdecrease in invenlones
Increasefidecrease) In trade payablzs and accruals
Incraasefidscraasa) In provisions
Cash ilow from operalions

29

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2011 2014 2011 2090
5 5 5 3
{403,384} (2,718,382) {20,267} {827,890}
665,348 183,483 - 32,086
44 068 - 265,781 -
1,126,530 {663,267} 166,471 161,648
88,145 {70,635} 11,448 51.048
{1,280,727) {385,032} 110,000 511,213
(3,319,070) {223,017) [488,912) {285,202}
34,504 204,339 - {14,676}
(3,188,582) {3,688 501} {192,479) {371,686}
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t8) Acquisitlen of Entities

During the year a further 100% ownership inlsrest in
Heritage Brands {Australla) Pty Lid {farmerty:
Creative Brands Pty Ltd) was acquired. No cash was
paid by lhe group for this acquisition:

Furchase cansideration - 1 - -
Consisting af:

- - Gash consideralion - 1 - -
Tolal consideration - i - .

Assats and Fabilifies held at acquisilion dale:

Cash - 758,389 - -
Receivables . - 2,113,444 - -
Inventaries - 1438487 . -
Propery, plant and equipment . 572,234 - -
Payables - {6,462 055) - -

- {1,540 £01) - -

Goadwill on consofidation - 1,548,502 -

The goodwill 15 altributabla to the profitability of the acquirad business ang the signifizant synergles expectad to arlse aker the Groop's acguisition of
Innoxa Group Ply Ltd. Informatlon regarding the acquisitions, Including profit since acquisition, Is disclosed at Nota 12.

Male 25 Share-based Payments
(i} On01 December 2006, 1,750,000 share oplions were granted 1o directors {0 take up ordinsry shares at an exercise price of 25canfs each. On 25 Oclobar

2009, the directors resolved fo cancef 1,500,000 oplians previousty issuad 1o directors as share based paymenls. Tha remaining oplions are exercisable
an or before 31 July 2012, Tha optiens hold no voting rights and are not fransferabla.

Consglidated Group Parent Enlity
A summary of the moverents of all company aptions Weighted Weighted
issued is a5 follows: Number avarage Number average
exercise price exercise price

Dptions outstanding as at 21 July 1,750,000 25¢ 1,750,000 25e
Farfeited! cancelled {1.500,000) (1,500,000}

Optlons outstanding as at 31 July 250,000 250,000

Options exercisable as at 31 July 2011: 250,000 250,000

Oplicns exercisable as at 31 July 2010: 250,000 250,000

nciuded under employas benafits expense in 1he statement of comprehensive inceme is $nil which ralates to equity sattlad share hasad payment fransactions
{2010: nil}, since the exarcisa price of oplions is higher than the quated share price

Note 28 Events After the Reporling Perlod

No matlers or circumstancas have arisen sinee the end of the financial year which significantly eHecled, or may significanity affect the apserations of the
Company {n future financlal years, the raguis of those oparations, or the state of affaire of Iha Company in fultre financial years.
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Note 27 Related Party Transacilons
Cansolidaled Group Parent Entity
2011 2010 2011 2010
§ 3 g $

Transactions between relaled partics are on normal commersial ferms and

conditions no mara favouralie than lhose availeble to other parties uniess

athenwise staled.

Transactions wilh related parties:

4 Other Related Partles

Cash loan from majar sharehalder - Maximize Equily Ply Ltd (MEPLY 043,431 385,000 -
Cash loan from major sharehalder » Soul Private Equity Ltd (SPEL) 1,016,282 385000 -
Casit loan from major shareholder - Rawlo Inlermational [no 1,530,000 - -
Cash oan from major sharcholder - Slephen Masaon 220,000 - -
Cash toan from major shareholder - Slaven O'Neift 103,122 - -
Cash loan from major sharehalder - Chris MeGibbon 7,000 - -
Cash [oan from major shareholder - PJT Holdings Py Lid 100,497 - -
Cash loan from major shareholder - $ Goodey Pty Lid 103,917
Cash foan from major sharehelder - JKL Developments Ply Lid 10G.497 - -
Interes| paidipayable on cash loan provided by Maximize Equity Ply 64,448 47470 -
LEd {MLCPL})
Interest paidipayable on cash loan provided by Sout Private Eguity G8,171 48,138 -
Lt (SPEL)
Interest paidfpayable on cash ioan provided by Rawla infernalionat 129,131 - -
InG
Interest paidipayable on cash Ioan pravided by Slephen Mason 14482 - -
Interast pald/payatle on cash loen provided by Sleven C'Neill 4,794 - -
Interest paid/payable on cash loan pravided by Chris McGlIbbon G666 - -
Interest paidfpayable on cash lzan provided by PJT Holdings Piy Ltd 4,601 - -
nteresi paidipayable on cash lean provided by S Goodey Py Lid 4732 - -
Interest paidipayable on cash loan pravided by JKL Davelopmenis 4601 - -
Piy Ltd
Fees { salades (incluslve of all hansfits & superannuation) paid o 211,845 78,843 -
direclors
Management Fees paidf payable 66,434 184,701 -
Management Fees paid! payable [o a director relaled enlify for shared 393,000 - -
services
Managenent Fees recaived! recaivabla from a director refaled entily 168,639 - -

for shared services
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Nale 28 Financial Risk Managemont

The Group's financlal Ingtrumants consisl mainly of deposils wilh banks, accounts receivable and payable, Joans to and from subsidiaries, bills, and leases.

The totals for each catagory of finencial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 139 as detailed In the accounting policies to these financial
slatemients, are as follows:

Conzalidated Graup Parent Enlity
2011 2010 2013 2010
Rote k] L3 3 3

Financial Aggels

Casl and cash equivalents 8 158,533 364,136 7,153 50,991
Loans and recelvables I 2,085,656 950,213 2,446,891 3.005,358
Total Flnanclal Assets 3.147.160 1,204,349 2,954,044 3.0058,348
Financiat Liabilitlas

Financlal llabilittes at amorised cost

— Trade and other payables 16 3,398,085 2,439,130 5 485,512

- Borrowings 17 6,227,014 770,000 256,645 -

Totat FInancial Liabilitias 9,825,099 3,209,130 256,650 486,512

Financial Risk Manageiment Policles

The Board of Direclars {Ine Board) is responsible for, amongst cfner issues, monltoring and managing financial sk exposures of the Group, The Board
monitors the Group's Ainancial risk management policies and exposures and approves financial fransactions within the scope of ifs authority. H also reviews the
effectivenass of internal controls relating to commedity price risk, counlerparty credit risk, currency risk, financing risk and interest rale risk.

The Board's overall risk management stralegy seeks to assist the conselidated Group in megting its inancial {argels, while minimising polentiat adverse effecls
on financiat performanca. Its functions include 1he raview of the credil risk policies and future cash flow requirements.

Speciflc Financial Risk Exposures and Management
Tha main rigks the Group is exposed to through its financial Instruments are credit dsk, Rquidity risk and market risk conslsting of interest rate risk and foretan
currency risk.

Credit risk
Exposure fo credil risk refaling to financial assels arises from lhe potenlial non-performanca by counterparties of contract obligations hat could lead 0 a
financial lozs to 1he Group.

Credit risk is munaged through the maintenance of procaedures {such procedures Include the utllisation of syslems for the approval, granting and renewal
of credit limils, regular monitoring of exposures against such limits and monitoring of the fnancial slability of significant cuslomers and counterpadios),
ensuring to the exienl possible, hal cusforners and counterparies 1o fransactions are of sound credil worthiness. Such monitering Is used in assessing
recelvables for fmpalrment.

Risk is also minfmised through investing surplus funds in financial institutions that maintain a high credit rating of inenfilies that lhe Board has othenwise
cleared as being financhally sound.

Credff Risk Exposures

The maximum exposure fo cradif risk by ¢lass of recognised financial assets at the end of Ihe reporting period, excluding the value of any colialeral ar
other security held Is equivalent to ihe carrying valua and classification of those financial assets (net of any provistons) as presenled in the sfalement of
financial position,

The Group hag no sigaificant concentralion of credit risk with any single counterparty or group of counterparties. However, on a geographic basis, the
Group has slgnificant credil risk exposures fo Australia given the substantial operations in lhose regions. Datails with respect (o credit risk of Trade and
Dther Recalvables 1s pravided in Note 9.

Trade and olher receivables that are neilhar past due or impaired are considered te be of high credit guality. Aggregates of such amounts are as deteiled
at Mote 9.

Credi| rizk refated 10 balances with banks and olber financial inslitutions s managed by the Boand In accordance with approved Board policy. Such policy
requiras that surplus funds are only invested wilh counterparties will & Standard and Foor's raling of at least AA-. The following lable provides information
regarding the eredit riek ralating fo cash and money markel securities based on Standerd and Poor's counterparty credit ratings.

Note Consolidated Group Parant Entiy
20141 2010 2011 2010
5 $ 5 $
Casht and cash equivalents
- AA Rated 158,533 354,136 7,153 50,591
a 168,533 354,135 7,183 a0,891
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: §1 081 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2011

b. Liquidity risk

Liguidily risk grises from the possibility that the Group might encounter difficulty In setlling ite debls or othervisa meetlng lis obligatlons related to financlal
lizbililies. The Group manages this fisk through the following mechanisms:

» preparning forvard looking cash Mow analysis in refation ta Its aperalional, Invasiing and financlng activitles

» moniloring undrawm credit facililies

» oblaining funding from a variety of sources

» mamntaining a reputable cradit profila

« managing credit risk refated to financial asseis

« gnly investing surplus ¢ash with major financial institutions

» comearng the maturity profile of financial iabiiiliss with the reatlsation profile of financlal asests
The tables below reflect an undiscounted coniractual malurity analysis for finenciat lisbilities. Bank overdeafts have been deductad in tha analysis as
managemenl does not conslder that there 18 any matarial risk that the bank will tarminala such facilitias. Tha bank does howaver malnfain the right to
terminate the fagilities without nolice and therafore 1he balances of averdralts oulstanding at yaar end could become repayabile within 12 months, Financial
guaraniee liabililies are trealed as payable on demand since Lhe Group has ne cantrel over tha timing of 2ny potential sefliement of the liabilities.

Casls flows realised from1 financial assets reflecl management's expeclation as to the timing of realisation. Aclual iming may therefore differ from that
disclosed. T tirning of cash fows presented in 1he {able to setlle financhal liabilities reflect the eartiest contractual setfiement detes and do not reflect
managemant's expectations thal banking facililies will be rolled forward,

Financial liabHity and financial asset maturity analysis

Within 4 Year 1ta 6 years Over & years Total

2011 2010 2011 2010 2014 2010 2011 2010
Consollkiated Group $ g & 3 & 5 5 8
Financlat labllifes dus for paymant
Trade and olher 3,646,492 2,652,782 - - - - 3,645,482 2,662,782
payables {excl. st
annual leaval
Amounts payable to - - 4,138,746 770,000 - - 4,138,748 770,000
relaled paities
Financial leasa 78,582 - - - - 78,582
lighilities
Tolal contractual 3.725074 2.G52,782 4,138,745 770,000 - - 7.8631,820 34227182
outflows
Less bank overdrafts - -
Tolal expactad 3,725,074 2,652,782 4,128,748 710,000 - - 7.863,820 3422782
ouifiows :

Within 1 Year 110 & years Over § years Total

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Consolldated Group 5 $ % ] $ $ § ]
Financial Assets - cash {lows realisable
Cash and cash 158,533 354,135 - - - - 158,533 354,138
equlvalents
Trade, lerm and loens 2,088,656 950,213 - - - - 2,988 656 950,213
racaivables
Invenlary 5,016,942 881,402 - . “ - 5,015,042 881,409
Total anticipaled 8,163,131 2,185,753 - - - - 8,163,131 2,185,768
inflaws
Net {outflow) { inflaw on 4,428,057 (467.024) (4.138,746) {70.000) - - 29%.511 (1.237.024)

linancial instruments

2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 34 JULY 2041

Firancial liabiity maturity analysis

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

financial inslruments

Within 1 Year 1fo 5 yaars Over 5 yaars Total contractual ¢ash flow

2011 2010 2011 2610 20414 2010 2011 2010
Parent Entify S $ 3 -l $ 3 3 $
Financial llabilities dua far paymant
Trade and olher 256,85G 4R6,512 256,560 466,512
payabies (excl. esl.
ennual eave}
Total centraciual 256,650 436,512 - - - 256,650 486.512
outllows
Less bank overdrafis " -
Total expacted 256,630 486,512 - - - 286,650 486,512
outlows

Within 1 Year 1to 5 years Over & years Total contractual cash flow

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Parenl Enlity § $ 5 $ ] $ 5 5
Financlal Assels - cash flows reallsable
Cash and cash 7,183 50,991 - - - 7,153 50,291
equlvalents
Trade, lerm and loans 2,047,257 3,016,504 - - - 2,047,297 3,016,805
receivables
tnvantory - 110,000 - - - 110,000
Tatal anticipated 2,954,450 3477796 - - - 2,854,450 3,177,796
inflows
Net {outflow} £ inflow on 2,897,800 2,691,284 - - 2,697,800 2,691,284

¢. Market Risk
i [nterest rate risk

Exposure to Interest rate risk arises on financial 2ssets and financial liabililies recognised at the end of the reporling pariod whereby a fulure changs in
interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair value of fixed rafe financial instrumenls. Tha Group is also expasad to eamings volatility on floating rate

instruments.

Exgosure fo interest rate risk arisas on financlat assets and financial liabiiifies recognised al Ihe 2nd of the reperting period wharaby a fture changa in
inferest rates will affect fulure cash flows or the fair value of fixed rafa financial instrumenls. Tha Group has berrawings from related sntittes! shareholders
on fixed rates of interest and not excosed to any materlal inlarest rate risk. The Group is only exposed to Interest rate risk on bank facilities.

Il. Forcign exchange risk

Exposure to foreign exchange risk may resuit In the falr value or futbre cash flows of a flnancial instrement fluciuating due to movemen! in foreign
sxchangs rates of currencies in which the Group holds financial instruments which are other than the AUD functional currency of the Group,

The following 1able shows the forelan currency risk on the financial assets and liabilities of the Group's opesallons denominated In currencles other than the
funclicnal curreney of e operations. The foreign currency risk i the books of the parent is considered immalterial and is therefore not showin.

201

Congolidated Graup

Functlonal currancy of entity
Austrafian Dollars

New Zealand Dollars

Statemant of financial position exposire

2010

GConaolidated Group

Functional currency of entity
Aushralian Dollars

MNew Zeatand Dallars

Slatemnant of financial posilion exposune

iii. Price fisk

Nat financlai assets/{Hahiiltlos) in AUD §

NZD AUD GBP Othar Total AUD
4,832,897 4,632 867
1 1
i 4,632,897 - 4,632,608

Mat financlal aazetsi[llabilltips) In AUD $

NZD AUD GBP Othar Tatal AUD
586820 635,820
1 1
1 685,320 - 635,821

The Graup is exposed lo price risk in respect of packaging, raw material and finished goods pricas,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2011

Sensitivity Analysis

The following 1able iMusirates the eslimated sensitivities to tha Group’s exposwres to changes in interest rates and exchange rates. The labte indicates the
impact on how profit and equily valucs reporled at balanca date would have been affecled by changas in the refevant risk varable that management consldars
to ke raascnably possible. Thase sensitivities assume that the movamenl in a particular variable is independent of other variables.

Consolldated Group Parent Entlty

Profit Equity Profit Equity
Yaar anded 31 July 2011 $ 3 5 $
+i- 1% in interest rates 70.000 70,000 2.500 2,500
+ 10% In SABLS 120,000 120,000 4,260 4,250

Consolldated Group Parent Enlity

Profit Equity Profit Equity
Year ended 31 July 2010 $ & 5 [
+- 1% in interes! rates 20,000 20,000 10,000 10,000
+- 10% in $ABUS 50,000 £0,000 25,000 25,000

Het Fair Values

Falr value estlmation

The fair velues of financial assets and financial Hablliies are presanted in the following tabla and can be comparsd to their carrying values as presented in the
slatamant of finenclal position. Fair values are those amounts al which an assef could be exchanged, or a Nabillty setiled, between knowladgeatle, willing
parties In an amy's Jangih transacton.

Fair values derived may be based on information that is estimated or subject lo judgment, whera changes In assumptions may have a malarial iImpact on the
amounts sslimaled. Areas of judgment and the agsuraplions have baen defailed below. Where possible, valualion Infarmation used 1o caloulate fair value is
exdracted from tha market, with more refiable information avaitatle from markets that are actively traded. In this regard, fair velues for listed securities are
obtaincd from quoted market bid prices. Whara securities are unlisted and no market quoles are aveilable, fair value is obtained vsing discounted cash flow
enalysis and other valuation techaiquas commanly used by markst parlicipants.

Djfferences between fair values and canrying vahes of financial instruments with fixed interest rates are due lo lhe chenge in discount rales being applied by the

maikel since thelr iniflal recognitlan by tha Group. Most of these instrumenls which are carried at amortised cost (.e. term receivables, held-lo-maturity assets,
loan Tigbilities) arc to be held until maturity and therefora tha net fair value figures calculated bear litlls relavance fo 1he Group.

Footnote 2014 2010
Net Carrying Nel Carrying

Value Net Fair Value Value Net Fair Value
Consclldaled Group $ $ $ 5
Financial agsets
Cash and cash eguivalents {i} 156,533 168,533 354,136 354,136
Trade and cthar receivables {i} 2 088 650 7.088 656 950,213 650,213
Totat flnanctal assots 3,147,180 3.147.189 1,304,349 1,304,348
Financial llahilitles
Trade and other payables {i} 3,398,085 3,298,085 2,439,130 2,439,130
Leasc liakility iy} 78,582 75,582 - -
Secured debis (it} 6,148,432 6,148,432 770,000 770,000
Total financial llabllities 9,525,009 9,625,009 3,209,130 3,209,130

Footaote 2011 2010
Het Carrying Net Carrying

Value Net Fair Value Value Net Fair Value
Parent Entity $ $ $ $
Financial assets
Cash and ¢ash equivalents {i) 7,563 7,153 50,891 50,991
Trade and ofher receivables { 16,665 10,665 177,136 177136
i pans and advances - relaled parlies (i} 2,836,226 2,036,226 2,823 222 2,528 222
Total financial assets 2,864,044 2,054,044 3,058,349 3,058,345

Financial Habllitles

Trade and other payables {i} 5 4B6,512 486,512

hln

Total financial liabllities 5 486,512 4R6.512

The falr values disclased in the above table have besn determined based on the following methodelogies:

{iy Cash and cash equivalents, Irads and other recefvables and trada and other payables are short term Instruments (n nature whose carrying value is
equivalent te fair value. Trade and other payables excludes amounts provided for annual feave, which is oulside the scope of AASB 139,

{iy Discounted cash flow models are used to determine the fair values of foans and advances. Discount rafes used on the calculations are based on
inlarest ralas exisling 81 the end of he reperting perod for simifar fypes of loans and advances, Differences between faic values and canying values
largely represent movements in the effective Interest rate determined on initial receguilion and currenl mesket rates.

(i) Falr values are determined using a discounted cash flow mode! incarporating current commercial boreoving rates. The fair values of fixed rete bank
debt will differ lo the camnying values,

Note 29 Conmpany Details

Tha regisiered office and Lhe pringipal place of business of the company is:
Haritage Brands Limiled

30 Bando Road

Springvale

WVIC 3171
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

The directors of the company declare that:

1.

(he financial statemenls and notes, as set out on pages 7 to 35, are in accurdance with the Corporations Act

2001 and:

(a} comply with Acccunling Standards, which, as stated in accounting policy note 1 o the financial
stalements, conslifutes explicit and unreserved compliance with International Financial Reporting

Standards {IFRS); and
{b} give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 July 2011 and of the perlarmance for the year

ended on that date of the company and consolidated group;

the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finance Officer have sach declared that;

(a) the financial records of the company for the financial year have been properly meintained in accardance
with section 286 of the Corporalions Acf 2007;

(b) the financial statements and nates for the financial year comply with Accounting Standards; and

{c) the financial statements and notes for the financial year give a true and fair view; and

in the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to belleve that the company will be able o pay its debts
as and when they become due and payable.

The company and a wholly-owned subsidiary, Heritage Brands {Austrajia) Ply Ltd, have entered inte a deed of
cross guarantee under which the company and its subsidiary guarantee the debts of each other.

At the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the companies which are pariy to this
deed of cross guarantee will be able to meet any obligalions or liabiiities te which they are, or may become suhject

to, by virlue of the deed.

This deciaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Dircctor

Dated this 14th day of

2011

36



Rothsay’

HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Heritage Brands Limited (the company) and Heritage Brands
Limited and confrolled entities (the consclidated entity), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 July
2011, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and the
directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or
from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting
Standard AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of malerial
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control ralevant to the enlity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
eftectiveness of the entity’s intemal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reascnakleness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report,

We believe (hal the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence rzquirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We
confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the directors
of Heritage Brands Limited , would be in the same terms if provided fo the directors as at the date of this auditor's report.
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91081 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED

Auditor's Opinion
In our opinion:
a. the financial report of Heritage Brands Limiled and Heritage Brands Limited and Controlled Entities is in
accordance with the Corperations Act 2001, including:
giving a true and fair view of the company and corsolidated entity's financial position as at 31 July 2011 and
of their performance for the year endad on that date; and

il complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulaticns 2001;
h. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1.

Going Concern Basis

Without qualification to the audit opinion expressed above, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements, which
states thal lo continue as a going concern the Group requires additional funding to be secured within the next year from
sources including:

* deferment of the repayment of existing borrowings from the major shareholders,
* raising additional borrowings from major shareholders,

% aquity capital raising, and

* the generation of sufficient funds from operating activities.

If the Group is unable to continue as a going concem it may be required to realise it's assets and extinguish it's liabilities
other than in the normal course of business and at amountls different to those stated in the financial statements.

Report on the Remuneration Report

We nave audited the Remuneration Raport included in the directors’ report for the year ended 31 July 2011. The
directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance
witn section 300A of the Carporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report,
based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Auditor's Opinion
In our opinion the Remuneration Report of Heritage Brands Limited for the year ended 31 July 2011, complies with
section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Name of Firm: Rothsay Chartered Accountants ﬂo '&‘-7
Name of Partner: Graham Swan @ZQ —

Address: Level 1, 12 C'Connell Street, SYDNEY NSW 2000

Dated this 14th day of October 20M
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 08t 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR LISTED PUBLIC GOMPANIES

The following Information is currenl as at 31 July 2011:
1. Shareholding

a. Distributlon of Shareholders Number

Calagory (size of holding) Ordinary Redeamable
1-1,000 - -
1,001 -- 5,000 Z -
5,061 - 10,000 90 -
10,001 - 100,000 121 -
100,001 — and over 52 -

265 -

b. The number of shareholdings held in less than marketable pareels Is nil.

G. The names of {ha subslantial shareholders listed in the holding company's register are:

Numbher

Sharaholder Crdinary Profarence

Souls Privale Equity Limited 114,962,108 -
Maximlze Equity Pty Ltd 91,431,644 -
Rawlo Internationa! Inc ane71.614 -
Stephen Mason 63,895,060 -
JKL Pevelopmenls My Lid 18,298,034 -
Steven O'Neill 18,298,034 -
FJT Haldings Py Ltd 18,288 034 -
5 Goodsy Pty Lid 18,299,024 -

d. Voting Rights
The veling righls attached to each class of equity =ecurity are as fallaws:
Ordinary shares
— Each ordinary share is entitlet to one vote when a poll is called, olhenwlse each member present al a meoling or by proxy
has one vote on a show of hands.

e 20 Largost Sharoholders — Ordinary Shares

Number of Ordinary % Held
Fully Paid Shares of Issued
Nama Held Crdinary Gapital
1. Souls Private Equity Limited 114,362,106 25.1%
2. Maximize Equily Pty Lid 91,431,644 20.0%
3. Rawvilo International inc 80,671,614 17.6%
4, Stephen Mason £3,895,060 14.0%
5. JKL Developments Piy Lid 18,294,034 4.05%
6. Steven O'Neilt 18,228,034 4.0%
7. PJT Holdings Ply Litd 18,293,034 4.0%
a. 5 Goodey Py Ltd 18,298,034 4.0%
. Ktstant Holdings Ply Lid 11,268,080 2.5%
10.  Chrstopher MoGibban 3,070,000 0.7%
1. Avenue investments {Ausl) Pty Lid 1,275,000 0.3%
12.  STYLZ Franchising Ply Lk 1.200,000 0.3%
13, Hair Fx Ausiralia Pty Lid 723,405 0.2%
14. D Fairfult Ply Lid £20,000 0.1%
15.  Chris Boffa Py Lid 548,108 0. 1%
16.  Cordony Salons Py Lid 548,106 0.1%
17.  Cardony & Co Piy Lid 548,108 0.1%
18.  Frank Boffa Py | 1d 548,106 0.1%
19.  Herway Fly Lid 548,106 0.1%
20.  Nerang Ply Lid 496,000 0.1%
445,650,555 U7.4%
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED AEBN: 91 081 149 835
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ADDITIONAL INFORMATICN FOR LISTED PUBLIGC COMPANIES

The name of the company secrelary Is Christopher Wilifam MeGibbon.
The address of Ine principal reglstered office In Australia is 30 Bando Road, Springvale, VIC 3171. Telephone 03 8574 2100.

Registers of sacurifies ara he'd at the following addresses
NGW Boardroom Pty Lid, Level 7, 207 Kem Stieet, Sydnay, NSW 2000
Vicloria 30 Bando Raad, Springvale, VIC 3171

8toeck Exchange Listing

Quotation has been granted for all ihe ordinary shares of the company an ali Member Fxchanges of 1he National Stock Exchange
Limitad.

Unquated Securities
Options over Urissucd Sharcs
A fotal of 260,000 aptions are onissue.
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